
 

 

 AGENDA 
CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: June 19, 2018 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

 

MEETING PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS OF DECORUM 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  Although not required, speakers are requested to identify themselves by stating their 

name and city of residence for the official record. 

 

For items not listed on the agenda, any person may do so under “Citizens Addressing the Planning Commission on non-

agenda items.” Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on citizen comments.  As a reminder, the Brown Act 

does not permit the Commission to take action on items not on the agenda. 

 

All remarks shall be addressed to the Commission as a body and not to any member thereof, or to staff, or to the public. 

No person, other than a member of the Commission, and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into 

any discussion without the permission of the presiding officer. 

 

Whenever any group of persons wishes to address the Commission on the same subject matter, it shall be proper for 

the Chairman to request that a spokesperson be chosen. 

 

Any person who disrupts the meeting of the Commission, may be barred by the Chairman from further audience before 

the Commission during that meeting. 

 

WRITINGS RECEIVED AFTER AGENDA POSTING 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission less 

than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at City Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, during normal 

business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the planning commission meeting in the public access 

binder located on the table at the back of the Council Chambers. If you have questions related to this agenda, please 

call 916-625-5160. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

Packet Pg. 1



Planning Commission Agenda  

June 19, 2018 

Page 2 

 

 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

ELECTRONIC PRESENTATIONS 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

 

POSTING OF AGENDA 

In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) this agenda was posted on the City’s bulletin board at City 

Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, and City of Rocklin website at www.rocklin.ca.us.  

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Meeting called to order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

a. May 1, 2018 Minutes 

b. May 15, 2018 Minutes 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 

 

 None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. ATRIA ROCKLIN STORAGE BUILDING 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0002 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to allow the construction of a 1,361 square foot 

storage building at the existing Atria Rocklin Senior Living facility.  The subject site is located at 3201 Santa Fe 

Way.  APN 017-350-051.  The property is zoned Planned Development Business Professional/Commercial (PD-

BP/C) and Wetlands (W).  The General Plan designation is Business Professional/Commercial (BP/C) and 

Recreation/Conservation (R-C). 

 

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303, 

Packet Pg. 2



Planning Commission Agenda  

June 19, 2018 

Page 3 

 

 

New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, and Section 15311, Accessory Structures, has tentatively 

identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project. 

 

The applicant is The Olympic Group, Inc.  The property owner is ARHC CAROCCA01 LLC. 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Notice Of Exemption (Atria 

Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002) 

 

b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Design Review (Atria Rocklin 

Storage Building/DR2018-0002) 

 

8. WEST MARINE DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0003 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to construct an approximately 65-foot-tall, 672 

square foot digital freeway sign adjacent to Highway 80.  The subject site is located on the southern corner of the 

commercial center located at 4445 Granite Drive, directly adjacent to Highway 80. APN 045-080-036. The 

property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial 

(RC) 

 

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified 

that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Digital Freeway Sign 

Program project adopted by City Council in 2012 (CC Reso 2012-35).The applicant is Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC (Beau 

Palley). The property owner is Acorn Property Management and Development Company, LLC (Audrey Gannon). 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval 

Of An Operating Agreement For A Digital Freeway Sign, City Of Rocklin And Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC Interstate 

80 At West Marine. (West Marine Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003) 

 

b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval 

Of A Design Review (West Marine Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003) 

 

9. DIGITAL BILLBOARD SIGN RELOCATION 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0015 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to relocate an existing digital billboard sign from APN 

365-020-032 south, approximately 80 feet, on to APN 365-310-033. There would be no modification to the 

design, height, or total area of the sign. The subject site is located on the northwest corner of the commercial 

center located at 6500 Lonetree Boulevard, directly adjacent to Highway 65.  APN 365-310-033. The property is 

zoned Planned Development Business Professional/Commercial/Light Industrial (PD-BP/C/LI).  The General Plan 

designation is Retail Commercial (RC) 

 

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified 

that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Digital Freeway Sign 

Program project adopted by City Council in 2012 (CC Reso 2012-35). The applicant is Clear Channel Outdoor (Rob 

LaGrone). The property owner is Rocklin 65 LLC (John S. Foggy). 

 

Packet Pg. 3



Planning Commission Agenda  

June 19, 2018 

Page 4 

 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval 

Of An Operating Agreement For A Digital Freeway Sign, City Of Rocklin And Clear Channel Outdoor At 

Rocklin 65 Commerce Center Site. (Digital Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015) 

 

b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval 

Of A Design Review (Digital Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015) 

 

10. RMC GRAZING ANIMALS UTILIZED FOR WEED ABATEMENT 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, ZOA2018-0003 

 

The proposed project would amend certain sections of Title 17 - Zoning of the Rocklin Municipal Code related to 

the keeping of large animals in single family residential zones to clarify exemptions pursuant to the City’s Weed 

Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program. 

 

The proposed revisions to the Rocklin Municipal Code are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not result 

in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they authorize the 

construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is 

exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3), 15262, and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 

The proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code was initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be 

effective City-wide. 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval Of An Ordinance Of 

The City Council Of The City Of Rocklin To Amend A Section Of Title 17 Of The Rocklin Municipal Code 

Regarding The City’s Weed Abatement And Open Space Management Grazing Program And The Keeping Of 

Large Animals (ZOA2018-0003) 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

11. Presentations and Informational Items 

12. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

13. Reports from City Staff 

14. Adjournment 

 

 

 

Packet Pg. 4



CITY OF ROCKLIN 
MINUTES OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

May 1, 2018 
Rocklin Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

(www. rocklin.ca.us) 
 

 

Planning Commission Minutes Page 1 
May 1, 2018 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at  6:32 pm 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner McKenzie.   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Chairman Martinez  
 Commissioner McKenzie  

Commissioner Sloan - excused 
 Vice Chairman Whitmore  
 Commissioner Vass  
  
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Assistant City Attorney  
Laura Webster, Director of the Office of Long Range Planning  
Bret Finning, Manager of Planning Services 
Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
David Mohlenbrok,  

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About  10    
 
4. Minutes –     

a. Minutes of March 20, 2018 were approved as submitted. 
5. Correspondence  - None  
6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items –  None 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

 None 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

7. CONTINUED FROM APRIL 17, 2018 
AAA BUILDING AT SECRET RAVINE    CONTINUED TO MAY 15, 2018 
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0001 
USE PERMIT, U2018-0001 
 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and a Use Permit to allow the construction and 
operation of a 6,800 square foot AAA auto repair facility on a vacant pad within the existing Center at Secret 
Ravine. The use would be light general maintenance service for vehicles. This would include oil changes, battery 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #4.a.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 2 
May 1, 2018 
 

replacement, tire replacement/rotation, etc. The use would not include any heavy repair, such as engine 
replacement or auto body work.  The subject site is a vacant pad within the Center at Secret Ravine, located at 
5530 Schriber Way. APN 045-053-081. The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C). The 
General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC). 
 
A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified 
that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Center at Secret 
Ravine project adopted by City Council in 2011 (Reso 2011-144). 
 
The applicant is RSC Engineering, Inc. The property owner is Donahue Schriber Realty Group, LP. 
 

 
8. CONTINUED FROM APRIL 17, 2018 
 ROSEVILLE MOTORSPORTS (SUNSET PLAZA)  
 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2018-0003 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow automotive service and repair in 
connection with a new motorcycle and recreational vehicle retail store in an existing tenant space in the Sunset 
Plaza Shopping Center. The subject site is located on the southeast corner of Pacific Street and Sunset Boulevard.  
APN 046-010-026.  The property is zoned Retail Business (C-2).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial 
(RC). 
 
A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15332 
Infill Development Projects has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of 
environmental review for this project. 
 
The applicant is Robert Keil.  The property owner is 6015 Pacific St., LLC. 
 

Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 

• Outdoor storage during off hours 

The Applicant Bob Keil addressed the Commission stating they had nothing to add but were available for 
questions. 

The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 

The hearing was opened to the public for comment. There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
The Commission had no additional questions for Staff and the Applicant. 
 

On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Roseville Motorsports / U2018-0003) was 
approved by the following vote: 

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #4.a.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 3 
May 1, 2018 
 

AYES:  Vass, Whitmore, McKenzie, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Conditional Use Permit (Roseville Motorsports / U2018-0003) was 
approved by the following vote: 

AYES:  Vass, Whitmore, McKenzie, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

 

9. VILLAGES AT CIVIC CENTER 
 DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0013 
 
This request is for Design Review approval of a single family residential project that includes 11 detached single 
family homes and 54 attached single family homes along with landscaping and some related site improvements. 
Most site improvements were reviewed and approved with the previously approved Tentative Subdivision Map, 
SD-2004-08, and Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit, TRE-2004-04. (The approved map allows the subdivision of an 
existing approximately 12.5 acre site into 54 lots for attached single-family homes, 11 lots for detached single-
family homes, and 5 lots for open space and common parking, landscaping, and park areas.)  The subject site is 
generally located north of Evelyn Avenue, east of Ruhkala Road, and west of Lost Avenue. APNs 010-191-029, 032, 
050, and 010-260-038 and 039.  The property is zoned Planned Development (Residential Development) 4 units to 
the acre (RD-4) and Planned Development (Residential Development) 8 units to the acre (RD-8). The General Plan 
designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
 
A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council 
through Resolution No. 2005-306. The requested revisions to the previously approved tentative subdivision map 
does not result in any environmental impacts beyond those that were previously identified and therefore, the 
Design Review can rely on the approved Mitigated Negative Declaration. 
 
The applicant and owner is Greg Judkins with Riverland Homes, Inc. 

Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner presented the staff report. 

The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 

• Gas/electric meters location on interior of 4 pack homes 
• Additional enhanced articulations on back row of townhomes (Bret Finning, Planning Services Manager, 

reminded the Commission that the Architectural Review Committee approved the design as submitted.) 
• Western access – public or private 
• Different color schemes and elevations 
• One car garages in 4 pack homes / additional visitor parking 

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #4.a.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 4 
May 1, 2018 
 

• Detached single family residences not being part of HOA 

The Applicant Tanner Judkins addressed the Commission regarding: 

• Gas meter locations being a PG&E decision 
• Rear elevation articulation enhancements 
• Alternating color schemes for the attached single family 

The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 

The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  
 

• Dan Meeker, Rocklin, spoke in support of the project, however, did express some concern with traffic flow 
and street parking on Lost Avenue 

• JoAnne Ruhkala Lawson, Rocklin, spoke in support of the project 
 
There being no further comments the hearing was closed. 
 
The Commission had additional questions for Staff and the Applicant regarding: 
 

• Circulation 
• Public street parking 
• Condition requiring garages for vehicle parking 
• CC&R’s for detached single family homes on Lost Avenue and Evelyn Avenue 
• 3 car garages traditional size 
• Pre plot plans for color schemes 

 
The applicant stated that he is okay with adding a condition regarding the alternating color schemes. 
 
Commissioner Whitmore stated he was concerned with the flatness of the backs of the attached single family 
units and would like to see some additional articulation added to those rear elevations and more color scheme 
options added for use with the detached single family homes. 
 
The applicant stated that the existing community asked for conformity in the project. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner McKenzie thanked the applicant for the work done through the Architectural Review Committee 
stated he supports the project as submitted and conditioned by staff. 
 
Commissioner Vass stated she agrees with Commissioner Whitmore on the flatness of the backs of the attached 
single family units.  
 
Commissioner Whitmore added that he is not suggesting the project come back but that it can done at the 
administrative level.  He stated he appreciates the fact the neighbors support the project.  He can support the 
project with these minor adjustments. 
 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #4.a.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 5 
May 1, 2018 
 

Chairman Martinez wants a condition added to make sure the same color/material palette is not next to each 
other for the detached single family homes and there are not mirror image color schemes across streets for the 
attached single family 4- and 5-pack buildings. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Whitmore and seconded by Commissioner Vass, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Villages at Civic Center / DR2017-0013) was 
approved by the following vote as amended regarding the additional articulation of the rear elevations of the 
attached single family units, creating “preplotting” plans for both the multifamily and single family units, and 
adding at least two more additional tones to the single family unit color palettes: 

Amend Condition to Read: 
 

10. Townhome and House Design 
 
a. Townhome and detached house architecture, colors, materials, and 

lighting shall be generally as shown in Exhibit A, consistent with the 
Quarry District Architectural Guidelines and subject to the following, to 
the satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director: 
(PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
i. Prior to issuance of building permits, the rear facades of the 

multifamily townhouse buildings shall be revised to incorporate 
additional minor dimensional elements (e.g. protruding gables) to 
create more articulation and depth. 

 
ii. The color schemes for the detached homes along Lost Avenue and 

Evelyn Avenue shall be revised to incorporate a minimum of two 
additional color scheme options, based on the townhome color 
palette, for added diversity. 

 
iii. Prior to issuance of the first building permit for the attached 

townhomes, the applicant shall submit a “pre-plot” plan exhibit that 
illustrates the color scheme combinations to be used on each building 
to ensure that no two adjacent buildings have mirror image color 
schemes.  

 
iv. Prior to issuance of the first building permit for a detached single 

family house, the applicant shall submit a “pre-plot” plan exhibit that 
illustrates the elevation and color scheme combinations to be utilized 
on each detached single family parcel to ensure that no two adjacent 
houses have identical finishes and colors. 

 

AYES:  Whitmore, Vass, Martinez 
NOES:  McKenzie 

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #4.a.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 6 
May 1, 2018 
 

ABSENT: Sloan 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Informational Items and Presentations 
 

• City Manager Resignation 
• Commissioner Sloan’s condition 
• Planning Commissioner applications due Friday, May 4th, 2018 
• May 15th, 2018 meeting 

 
10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

 
• Commissioner Vass offered to attend the ARC meetings in Commissioner Sloan’s absence. 
• Commissioner Whitmore will not be at the May 15, 2018 PC meeting. 

 
11. Reports from City Staff  

 
• DeeAnne Gillick, Deputy City Attorney will be leaving the City at the end of May, 2018. 

 
12. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at  7:35 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Planning Commission Secretary 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of   
 

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #4.a.



CITY OF ROCKLIN 
MINUTES OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

May 15, 2018 
Rocklin Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

(www. rocklin.ca.us) 
 

 

Planning Commission Minutes Page 1 
May 15, 2018 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at  6:31  pm 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Vass .   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Chairman Martinez  
 Commissioner McKenzie  

Commissioner Sloan - excused 
 Vice Chairman Whitmore - excused 
 Commissioner Vass  
  
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Assistant City Attorney  
Bret Finning, Manager of Planning Services 
Nathan Anderson, Senior Planner 
Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
Shauna Nauman, Assistant Planner 
Dave Palmer, City Engineer 

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About  25  
 
4. Minutes –    None 
5. Correspondence  - None  
6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items –  None 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

 None 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

7. CONTINUED FROM MAY 1, 2018 
AAA BUILDING AT SECRET RAVINE     
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0001 
USE PERMIT, U2018-0001 
 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and a Use Permit to allow the construction and 
operation of a 6,800 square foot AAA auto repair facility on a vacant pad within the existing Center at Secret 
Ravine. The use would be light general maintenance service for vehicles. This would include oil changes, battery 

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #4.b.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 2 
May 15, 2018 
 

replacement, tire replacement/rotation, etc. The use would not include any heavy repair, such as engine 
replacement or auto body work.  The subject site is a vacant pad within the Center at Secret Ravine, located at 
5530 Schriber Way. APN 045-053-081. The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C). The 
General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC). 
 
A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified 
that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Center at Secret 
Ravine project adopted by City Council in 2011 (Reso 2011-144). 
 
The applicant is RSC Engineering, Inc. The property owner is Donahue Schriber Realty Group, LP. 
 

Nathan Anderson, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had no questions for staff. 

The Applicant Tiffany Wilson, RSC Engineering, addressed the Commission and stated they agree with all 
conditions. 

The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 

The hearing was opened to the public for comment. There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
The Commission had no additional questions for Staff and the Applicant. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner Vass supports the project. 
 
Commissioner McKenzie supports the project. 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (AAA Building At Secret Ravine / DR2018-0001) was 
approved by the following vote: 

AYES:  Vass, McKenzie, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan, Whitmore 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Use Permit (AAA Building At Secret Ravine / U2018-0001) was 
approved by the following vote: 

AYES:  Vass, McKenzie, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan, Whitmore 
ABSTAIN: None 

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #4.b.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 3 
May 15, 2018 
 

8. KNIGHTS WAY TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 
  DIVISION OF LAND, DL2018-0001 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to allow the division of a 0.33± acre parcel into 
two parcels. Parcel 1 is proposed at 0.20± acres and Parcel 2 at 0.13± acres.  The property is currently developed 
with a single family residence and accessory structure. The subject site is located at 4925 Knights Way, 
approximately 110 feet northeast of the intersection of Knights Way and Sceptre Drive, south of Park Drive.  APN 
367-100-027. The property is zoned Planned Development Residential, 6 Dwelling Units/Acre (PD-6).  The General 
Plan designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
 
A preliminary review of this project, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15315 
Minor Land Division, has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental 
review for this project. 
 
The applicant is Timothy G. Blair, P.L.S. with Surveyors Group, Inc.  The property owner is Ron and Leilani Spell. 
 

Shauna Nauman, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 

1. Historic conditions or easements prohibiting split of parcel. 

The Applicant Anthony Cocchi addressed the Commission stating they had nothing else to add to the staff report. 

The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 

The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  
 

1. Elvis Lloyd, Rocklin – spoke in opposition 
2. David Jones, Rocklin – spoke in opposition  
3. Name not given – spoke  in opposition 
4. Ken Forsythe, Rocklin – spoke in opposition 
5. Name not given – spoke in opposition 
6. Name not given – spoke in opposition 
7. Andy Loberg, Rocklin – submitted letter in opposition which was presented as a blue memo. 

 
 
There being no further comments, the hearing was closed. 
 
The Commission had additional questions for Staff and the Applicant regarding: 
 

1. CC&R’s being city enforceable or not 
2. Residential oak tree mitigation for diseased/dead trees 
3. Size requirements for new homes 
4. Noticing requirements 
5. Lot size calculations 
6. Construction traffic regulations 

 
 

Packet Pg. 13

Agenda Item #4.b.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 4 
May 15, 2018 
 

Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner McKenzie stated that it would be very difficult to make findings for denial.  He supports the project. 
 
Commissioner Martinez stated he understands the concerns of the neighbors, but he also cannot make findings to 
deny the project.   
 
Commissioner Vass echoed the other Commissioners comments and supports the project. 
 

On a motion by Commissioner McKenzie and seconded by Commissioner Vass, Resolution Of The Planning 
Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Notice Of Exemption (Knights Way Tentative Parcel Map / 
DL2018-0001) was approved by the following vote: 

AYES:  McKenzie, Vass, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan, Whitmore 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

On a motion by Commissioner McKenzie and seconded by Vass,  Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The 
City Of Rocklin Approving A Tentative Parcel Map (Knights Way Tentative Parcel Map / DL2018-0001) was 
approved by the following vote: 

AYES:  McKenzie, Vass, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan, Whitmore 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

9. RMC COMMERCIAL MARIJUANA USE 
 ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, ZOA2018-0002 
 
The proposed project would amend certain sections of Title 17 - Zoning of the Rocklin Municipal Code related to 
the regulation of Marijuana. 
 
The proposed revisions to the Rocklin Municipal Code are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not result 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they authorize the 
construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is exempt 
under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3), 15262, and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 
 
The proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code was initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be 
effective City-wide. 
 
The applicant is the City of Rocklin. 

Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had no questions for staff. 

Packet Pg. 14

Agenda Item #4.b.



Planning Commission Minutes Page 5 
May 15, 2018 
 

The hearing was opened to the public for comment. There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner Vass stated she supports the ordinance amendment and would like to make a motion. 
 

On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, Resolution Of The Planning 
Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval Of An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Rocklin To Repeal And Re-Enact Chapter 17.81, Delete Certain Sections Of Title 17 Of The Rocklin Municipal Code, 
And Repeal Ordinance 1080 Regarding Regulation Of Marijuana (ZOA2018-0002) was approved by the following 
vote: 

AYES:  Vass, McKenzie, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Sloan, Whitmore 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Informational Items and Presentations - None 
 

10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners - None 
 

11. Reports from City Staff  
 

• Bret Finning, Planning Services Manager, reported that the June 5th Planning Commission meeting 
would be cancelled, but there would be a meeting on June 19th.   

• Mr. Finning also stated that tonight would be Assistant City Attorney DeeAnne Gillick’s last meeting 
with the City. 

 
12. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Planning Commission Secretary 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of   
 

Packet Pg. 15

Agenda Item #4.b.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
 

Design Review, DR2018-0002 
(Modification to Approved Project) 

 
June 19, 2018 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION (Atria Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
DESIGN REVIEW (Atria Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to allow the construction of 
a 1,361 square foot storage building within the existing landscape area at the northwest 
edge of the existing Atria Rocklin Senior Living & Memory Care facility.  
 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The applicant is: The Olympus Group, Inc.  
The property owner is:  ARHC CAROCCA01 LLC, A Delaware Limited Liability Company. 
 
General Site Information 
 
The subject site is a developed senior living and memory care facility located at 3201 
Santa Fe Way. Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 017-350-051. The proposed storage 
building is located at the northern edge of the developable area of the property as 

Packet Pg. 16

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
June 19, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
shown in Figure 1 (the northerly half of the property is designated Wetlands and cannot 
be developed).  
 

Figure 1 – Aerial/Vicinity Map 

 
 
Background 
 
Atria Rocklin Senior Living & Memory Care (previously Rocklin Villas and Casa de Santa 
Fe) was originally approved in 1999 (SPU-99-08 and DR-99-05) as an assisted living 
facility to provide care for residents with memory loss and consisted of the single story 
complex within the southwest portion of the property (Phase 1). In 2000, the 2-story 
independent living units (Phase 2) were approved along with an additional single story 
Alzheimer’s unit and a clubhouse at the north and east portion of the property (DR-
2000-17). The expansion was completed in late 2003 and the facility has been in 
operation since that time. 

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
June 19, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
Design Review 
 
The applicant is now requesting a modification to the approved design review to add a 
1,361 square foot storage building to the project. The storage building will be used for 

general maintenance supplies for daily operations of the overall site. No changes are 
proposed the existing site circulation or emergency vehicle access.  

Project Architecture 
 
The project site is not located within any of the City’s adopted Architectural Districts, 
and is therefore subject only to the architectural requirements of the Citywide Design 
Review Guidelines and the Municipal Code. As the existing development has already 
gone through design review approval, staff reviewed the proposed building for 
consistency with the architecture of the existing facility. Staff’s initial concern was that 
the new storage building should blend in with the existing buildings and not stand out 
from view along Stanford Ranch Road and Park Drive. Faux windows were added to the 
rear elevation to give the appearance of a living unit rather than a storage building, and 
thus, better blend with the existing buildings. All of the windows have trim to match the 
existing buildings. Figures 2 and 3 below show the faux windows along the rear 
elevation that will be visible from Stanford Ranch Road and Park Drive. 
 

Figure 2 – Rear Elevation 

 
 

Figure 3 – Faux Window Detail at Rear Elevation 

Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
June 19, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Colors and Materials 

The project proposes to use the same color scheme as that of the existing buildings as 
shown in Exhibit A and Figure 4 below. The windows, trim, and garage door will all 
match the existing buildings. The new storage building will have red concrete Spanish 
style roofing to match the existing buildings. The stucco on the sides and rear of the 
building will extend all the way down to finish grade.  
 

Figure 4 – Proposed Colors and Materials to Match Existing 

 
 
 

Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
June 19, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 
Landscaping and Drainage 
 
The project is proposed to be located within an existing landscaped embankment 
between the existing perimeter driveway and the retaining wall and fencing that 
separates the wetlands on the property from the developed area of the facility as shown 
in Figure 5 below.  The project does not propose to disturb the existing retaining wall 
and fence; to ensure that there is no disturbance of the wetland area a condition has 
been included in the draft resolution to require the fence and wall remain in place. 
 

Figure 5 – Existing Landscaped Embankment 

 
 
The area around the new building will be re-landscaped with groundcover, shrubs and 
vines as shown on Exhibit A, Sheet L1 and L2, of the Design Review Resolution. 
Recommended conditions of approval require the landscape plans be revised to include 
trellises along the bottom portion the building facing the wetlands. The landscape plans 
are conditioned to include climbing vines to grow onto the trellis to further enhance this 
portion of building area that will be visible from the public right-ofway. The existing tree 
located next to the trash enclosure will remain.  
 
The storage building is proposed to include roof gutters that will carry all runoff to 
downspouts at the front of the building that will convey runoff to the existing driveway 
and an existing storm drain inlet. 

Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
June 19, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 
As conditioned, staff finds the proposed storage building architecture, including colors, 
materials, landscaping, and drainage to be consistent with the existing development.  
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the proposed project and 
determined that it is categorically exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15303 – New Construction or Conversion 
of Small Structures and Section 15311 – Accessory Structures. For a more in-depth 
discussion of the environmental evaluation and conclusion, please refer to the Notice of 
Exemption attached to the Resolution prepared for the proposed project. 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compatibility 
 
The project site is designated as Business Professional/Commercial/Light Industrial 
(BP/COMM/LI) in the Rocklin General Plan and is zoned Planned Development Business 
Professional/Commercial (PD-BP/C). The northern portion of the property is designated 
Recreation/Conservation and is zoned Wetlands. This area of the property cannot be 
developed and no construction or construction activity is proposed in this area. 
Recommended conditions of approval include a requirement for temporary protective 
fencing to be installed to ensure that no construction related activities, equipment, or 
vehicles encroach into the wetlands.  
 
 Staff finds that the proposed project is compatible with the existing General Plan 
designation and Zoning and is consistent with the Citywide Design Review Guidelines 
and the existing development of the site.  
 
Summary 
 
Given the above, staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Notice of 
Exemption prepared for the proposed project and approve the Design Review (DR2018-
0002), subject to findings and conditions of approval. 
 
 
Prepared by Shauna Nauman, Assistant Planner 
P:\\Planning\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Atria Rocklin Storege Building\Meeting Packets\01 - SR Atria Rocklin Storage Building (PC 6-19-18).docx  

Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #7.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
          OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
APPROVING A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

(Atria Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the 
Atria Rocklin Storage Building Project/DR2018-0002 (“Project”) and determined that it is 
exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to 
California Code of Regulations Section 15303 – New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures and 15311 – Accessory Structures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of 
Rocklin as follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Environmental 

Coordinator, the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that the Project is 
exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
Section 2. A Notice of Exemption is approved for the Project. 
 
Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the Planning Commission, the 

Environmental Coordinator may file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of 
Placer County and, if the Project requires a discretionary approval from any state 
agency, with the State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 21152(b) of the Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted 
pursuant thereto. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of ______, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:   
ABSENT: Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:   
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary    

Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #7.a.



 
 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO: County Clerk, County of Placer  FROM: City of Rocklin 
 2954 Richardson Blvd.    ECD Department 
 Auburn, CA  95604-5228   3970 Rocklin Road 
       Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Project Title: Atria Rocklin Storage Building 
Project Location - Specific:  The project location is within the Atria Rocklin Senior Living Facility at 
3201 Santa Fe Way, APN 017-351-051. 
Project Location - City: Rocklin, CA; County: Placer 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: The proposed project would involve the 
construction of a 1,361 square foot storage building within the landscape area at the northwest edge 
of the existing Atria Rocklin Senior Living Facility. 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  City of Rocklin  
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: The applicant is the Olympic Group, Inc., Attn: Rich 
Francis, 8850 Greenback Lane, Ste. C, Sacramento, CA 95662, (916) 396-6228, and the property 
owner is ARHC CAROCCA01, LLC., 500 North Hurstbourne Parkway, Ste. 200, Louisville, KY 40222 
(502) 357-9000. 
Exempt Status (Check one) 

_x_ Categorical Exemption (California Code of Regulations Sec. 15300 et seq.): Section 15303 
– New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures and Section 15311 – Accessory 
Structures  

Reasons why the project is exempt. The project involves the construction of a 1,361 square foot 
storage building at an existing senior living facility, as further described above. Class 3 exemptions 
consist of the construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; 
installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; and the conversion of existing 
small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are made in the exterior of 
the structure. The numbers of structures described in this section are the maximum allowable on any 
legal parcel. Examples of this exemption include, but are not limited to: (e) Accessory (appurtenant) 
structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming pools, and fences. Class 11 exemptions 
consist of construction, or placement of minor structures accessory to (appurtenant to) existing 
commercial, industrial, or institutional facilities. The project as proposed is consistent with the 
exemption class descriptions noted above and is exempt pursuant to Classes 3 and 11 of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 
 
Contact Person:  Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 
 
Date received for Filing:    _______________________________________ 
 
Signature:  ___________________________________________________________________ 

Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 
 

P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\DavidM\EXEMPTIONS\Atria Rocklin Storage Buildling NOE and Reso 15303 and 15311 (2018).docx 

Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #7.a.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2018-   
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW 

 
(Atria Rocklin Storage Building / DR2018-0002) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A.  Design Review (DR2018-0002) approves the construction of a 1,361 
square foot storage building on a portion of the existing Atria Rocklin senior living 
facility (previously called Rocklin Villas and Casa de Santa Fe). Assessor’s Parcel Number 
017-351-051. 
 

B.  A Categorical Exemption of environmental impacts has been approved 
for this project via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2018-______. 

 
 C. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, 
natural features and constraints and is consistent with the existing site development. 
 
 D. The height, bulk, area, color scheme and materials of the buildings and 
structures are compatible with surrounding development. 
 
 E. Adverse light and glare impacts upon adjoining properties have been 
eliminated or reduced by conditioning the project to use light fixtures that will direct 
light downward. 
 
 F. The landscaping design is compatible with existing development in the 
area and has been conditioned to use climbing ivies on the rear elevation of the 
building to soften the large expanse of the footing wall needed to support the storage 
building while minimizing grading activities adjacent to the wetlands. 
 
 G. The design of the storage building is consistent with the goals, policies, 
and land use designations in the General Plan and with all zoning standards, 
regulations, and restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
 Section 2. The Design Review for the Atria Rocklin Storage Building/ 
DR2018-0002 as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein, is hereby approved subject to the conditions listed below. Unless 
expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each 
condition prior to occupancy of the structure. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the 
design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 

Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other 
plans, specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be 
specifically applicable to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within 
the condition for approval. Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely 
responsible for satisfying each condition prior to issuance of the building permit. The 
agency and/or City department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each 
condition is indicated in parenthesis with each condition. 
 
 A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 
 B. Conditions 
 
1. Utilities 
 

All utilities, as applicable, shall be provided to the structure in compliance with 
the standards and requirements of the applicable provider. (APPLICABLE 
UTILITY) 
 

2. Schools 
 

The following conditions shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact of the 
proposed development on school facilities (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
BUILDING): 
 
a. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to 

the Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code 
section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, to the satisfaction 
of the Rocklin Unified School District. 

 
b.   The above condition shall be waived by the City Council if the applicant 

and the District reach agreement to mitigate the impacts on the school 
facilities caused by the proposed development and jointly request in 
writing that the condition be waived. 

 

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

3. Grading and Drainage 
 

Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project a building permit, consistent with the exhibits and 
conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and in compliance with all 
applicable city standards, shall be prepared for the review and approval of the 
Chief Building Official and the Economic and Community Development Director.  
Said building permit shall specifically include, but is not limited to, a detailed 
grading and drainage plan prepared by a registered civil engineer. (BUILDING, 
PLANNING) 
 

4. Geotechnical Study 
 

Prior to any grading or construction activities including issuance of improvement 
plans or issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a design-level 
soil investigation for the review and approval of the City Engineer and/or Chief 
Building Official that evaluates soil and rock conditions, particularly the potential 
for expansive soils. The professional engineer that prepared the soil 
investigation shall recommend appropriate construction and foundation 
techniques and other best practices that are to be implemented by the project 
during construction. These techniques and practices shall address expansive 
soils or other geological concerns requiring remediation, including but not 
limited to: (BUILDING, ENGINEERING) 

 
a. Recommendations for building pad, footing, and retaining wall 

construction; 
b. Use of soil stabilizers or other additives; and 
c. Recommendations for surface drainage. 

 
5. Restoration of Disturbed Areas 
 

All on-site standard improvements disturbed or damaged by construction 
activities, including but not limited to paving, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, drainage 
improvements, irrigation improvements, utility improvements, parking lot lights, 
retaining walls, fences, trash enclosures, etc. shall be restored and / or replaced 
as indicated on Exhibit A. (BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 
6. Noise 
 

The project shall be subject to the following noise conditions; said conditions 
shall be included in the notes on the face of the building plans: (BUILDING) 

 
a. All “self-powered” construction equipment and stationary noise sources 

(e.g. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped with noise 
control devices (e.g. mufflers). (BUILDING) 

Packet Pg. 26

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 4 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

 
b. Equipment “warm-up” areas, water storage tanks, equipment storage 

areas, and stationary noise-generating machinery (e.g. pumps, electrical 
generators, etc.) shall be located away from the existing residences and 
other sensitive noise receptors to the extent feasible. (BUILDING) 

 
c. The project shall be subject to the City of Rocklin Construction Noise 

Guidelines, including restricting construction-related noise generating 
activities within or near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 
p.m. on weekdays, between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends. The 
Economic and Community Development Director may grant exceptions 
to the Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the opinion of the Economic 
and Community Development Director, special and unusual 
circumstances exist that make strict adherence to the Construction Noise 
Guidelines infeasible. (BUILDING) 
 

5. Landscaping 
 

a. Final landscape plans, consistent with the approved exhibit(s), shall be 
provided by the developer and approved by the Director of Economic 
and Community Development. The landscape plans shall comply with the 
following requirements: (PLANNING) 

 
1) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 

and shall include: 
 

i. Three trellises shall be added at the rear of the building (north 
elevation) and planted with non-invasive evergreen vines. 
Trellises shall be 8 feet high and 12 feet wide, constructed of 
a durable material such as but not limited to metal, and 
equally spaced to break up the mass of the lower portion 
(foundation wall) of the building.   

 
ii. A legend of the common and botanical names of specific plant 

materials to be used. The legend should indicate the 
container size of plant materials, the size at maturity, and 
include a graphic symbol for each plant type.  

 
iii. Shrubs and vines shall be a minimum of five (5) gallon in size.  

 
iv. Groundcover spacing shall be sufficient to achieve adequate 

cover upon establishment of the plants. 
 
v. An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system. 

The plan shall include drip irrigation wherever possible.  

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 5 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

 
2) The landscape plan shall be certified by the landscape architect 

that the plan meets the requirements of the Water Conservation 
in Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, et seq. 

 
b. All landscaping shall be installed and the landscape architect shall certify, 

in writing, that the landscaping and irrigation system have been installed 
and/or repaired in full compliance with the approved plans prior to 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. (PLANNING) 

 
6. Architecture 
 

Full gutters shall be installed at the roof eaves to carry all roof runoff to the 
front of the building to downspouts that will convey runoff to the existing 
driveway and then into the existing storm drain inlet to the east of the building. 
(PLANNING) 

 
7. Lighting 

 
Prior to issuance of a building permit, any proposed exterior lighting shall be 
approved by the Economic and Community Development Director for 
compliance with this condition. (PLANNING) 
 
a. Exterior lighting shall be designed and installed to avoid adverse glare on 

adjacent properties and to incorporate “dark sky” provisions. Cut-off 
decorative lighting fixtures, or equivalent, shall be used building 
mounted lighting and mounted such that all light is projected directly 
toward the ground.  

 
b. Building mounted light fixtures located on the front of the storage 

building shall match as closely as possible those used on the residential 
buildings. No light fixtures shall be mounted on the sides or rear of the 
building. 

 
8. Maintenance  

 
a. The property owner shall remove within 72 hours all graffiti placed on 

any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or structure on the property 
consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal Code Section 9.32.  
Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall report the 
graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

 
b. The project, including but not limited to paving, landscaping, structures, 

and improvements shall be maintained by the property owners, to the 
standard of similarly situated properties in equivalent use zones, to the 

Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 6 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 
9. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 

 
All mechanical equipment, whether ground or roof mounted shall be screened 
from view from all public rights of way to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director.  The design of the screening shall be in 
harmony with the architectural design of the building. (PLANNING) 
 

10. Special Conditions  
 

a. The existing masonry wall at the boundary of the Wetland area and 
decorative tubular steel fencing on top, shall be maintained, in place, 
undisturbed. (PLANNING) 

 
b. No construction activities shall be allowed within the wetlands area open 

space area (i.e., No construction, earth movement, staging, materials 
storage, etc.  beyond the point of the existing wall and fencing). (PLANNING) 

 
c. Notes shall be included on the construction plans stating “Grading, removal 

of native vegetation, deposit of any type of debris, construction materials, 
chemicals or trash is prohibited beyond the fence line separating the 
wetlands from the project site.” (PLANNING) 

 
10. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to 
indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the 
City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the 
City’s planning commission or City Council, which action is brought within the 
time period provided for in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City 
will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and 
the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, plan 
checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall be 
performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed 
within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 7 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

11. Validity 
 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension 
has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this     day of         , 2018, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
 
 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Pierre Martinez, Chairman 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
  
 
       
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. PC-2018- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Atria Rocklin Storage Building / DR2018-0002 
 

Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #7.b.



 
1

EXHIBIT A
DR2018-0002

P
acket P

g. 3
2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



165

162

163

164

166

167

168

169

x x x

N4

16
5

162

16
2

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
6

16
7

16
8

169

16
9

x

x x x x x x

x

WV

N74°03'00"W

218.45'

N47°07'00"W
   95.47'

N86°38'00"W     170.29'

N72°21'00"W67.47'

N79°10'00"W

307.07'

N
10

°5
0'

00
"E

31
9.

65
'

N
15°20'00"W

39.14'

R
=

5
0

. 0
0

'
D=1 1 5 °1 6 ' 0 5 "

L
=

1
00 . 5

9 '

R=55 .0
0

'
D

=
6

6
°0

7
'2

6
"

L
=

6
3

.4
7

'

R=3 7 5 . 00 ' D=1 9 °5
7 ' 3

4 "

L=13 0 . 6
3 '

N74°40'00"E   103.31'

34.45'

R=3 7 5 . 0 0 ' D=2 8 °1 2 ' 0 0 "

L =1 8 4 . 5 7 '

N77°08'00"W

66.90'

N33°06'05"W
24.54'

N
10

°5
0'

00
"E

61
9.

48
'

N61

N
13

°5
0'

57
"E

26
5.

66
'

N50°07'41"W
25.00'

R=4 0 0 . 0
0 '

D=34 °4
7 ' 4

1 "

L =242 . 9
1 '

N74°40'00"E
103.31'

R
=

1
0

0
0

. 0
0

'
D

=
2

°4
9

' 0
2

"
L

=
4

9
. 1

7
'

N
10

°5
0'

00
"E

R=4 0 0 . 0 0 ' D=2 8 °1 2 ' 0 0 "

L =1 9 6 . 8 7 '

68.86'

N77°08'00"W
144.27'

R=1060.00'
D=0°29'58"
L=9.24'

18
6.

19
'

39
.2

3 '

39
4.

06
'

P
A

R
K

   
  D

R
IV

E

VILLA     S
ERENA     W

AY

Parcel 2
30 PM 49

P.C.R.

5.
00

'

Existing Retaining Wall

10
.86

'

744 SF

Storage

599 SF

Shop

5.
00

'

Area of Work for New 
Storage Building

Emergency Vehicle Access
A

New Storage Building Location

NORTH

LE
W

IS
R SPRINGER

I I IL
I C

E

N S E D A R C H
I T

E
C

T

S
T

A
T

E
O F C A L I FO

R
N

I A

Ren: 08-31-19
No. C15138

LR
S.

..A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

   
--

--
   

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
A

cc
es

s 
S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 (

C
A

S
p)

(9
16

) 
99

5-
47

95
   

em
ai

l: 
LR

S
@

LR
S

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
.C

O
M

Project Information:

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Date:

Set: Sheet Title:

Sheet Number:

Revisions

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t c

on
ta

in
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 to

 L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
is

 fu
rn

is
he

d 
in

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

s 
an

 in
st

ru
m

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
co

nt
en

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 o
r

di
sc

lo
se

d 
to

 o
th

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

rio
r 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t o

f L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e.
  A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.
T

hi
s 

dr
aw

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 fi

na
l o

r 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

un
til

 it
 is

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

.

4/5/2018
Design Review

A

At
ria

 R
oc

kl
in

 -
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

16R10

lrs...

Si
te

 P
la

n 
an

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t I
nf

o

A1.1

10/27/2017

32
01

 S
an

ta
 F

e 
W

ay
, R

oc
kl

in
, C

A 
95

76
5

De
sig

n 
Re

vie
w 

-S
ho

p/
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

Drawing List
Sheet

Number Sheet Name
Current
Revision

1: Architectural
A1.1 Site Plan and Project Info A
A2.1 Floor & Roof Plan A
A4.1 Elevations A
A5.1 Sections

2: Color Board
CB Color Board

1/8" = 1'-0"A1.1
SP1 Site Plan - Partial

Area Schedule
Name Area

Shop 599 SF
Storage 744 SF

1343 SF

1" = 20'-0"A1.1
AP1 Area Plan

1" = 50'-0"A1.1
SP2 Site Plan-Overall

1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1
1 Photo-Storage Bldg Location

1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1
VM Vicinty Map

Scope of Work
The project consists of the construction of a wood framed structure for use as stroage and a small shop to 
service the existing Atria facility. The materials, archtiectural details, finishes, and color will match the 
existing buildings.

P
acket P

g. 3
3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



 16
1' 

 162' 

 163' 

 164' 

 165' 

 166' 

 167' 

 168' 

 16
4' 

 1
65

' 
 1

66
' 

 1
67

' 
 1

68
' 

 1
69

' 

A4.1

E1

A4.1E3

A4.1 E4

A4.1

E2

S1

A5.1

5'
 - 

0"
22

' -
 0

"

34' - 0" 22' - 0"

Storage
102

Shop
101

56' - 0"

33' - 10" 22' - 2"

56' - 0"

27
' -

 0
"

S2

A5.1

1-Hour Fire Rated Wall Assembly

A

A4.1

E1

A4.1E3

A4.1 E4

A4.1

E2

S1

A5.1

S2

A5.1

4" / 12"

4"
 / 

12
"

4" / 12" 4" / 12"

Hip

Valle
y

Hip

R
id

ge

Concrete 'S' Tile roofing, hip and
ridge caps to match existing

Rake Rake

Fascia Gutter: Sheet Metal. Painted
Finish to match existing.

LE
W

IS
R SPRINGER

I I IL
I C

E

N S E D A R C H
I T

E
C

T

S
T

A
T

E
O F C A L I FO

R
N

I A

Ren: 08-31-19
No. C15138

LR
S.

..A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

   
--

--
   

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
A

cc
es

s 
S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 (

C
A

S
p)

(9
16

) 
99

5-
47

95
   

em
ai

l: 
LR

S
@

LR
S

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
.C

O
M

Project Information:

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Date:

Set: Sheet Title:

Sheet Number:

Revisions

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t c

on
ta

in
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 to

 L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
is

 fu
rn

is
he

d 
in

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

s 
an

 in
st

ru
m

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
co

nt
en

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 o
r

di
sc

lo
se

d 
to

 o
th

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

rio
r 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t o

f L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e.
  A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.
T

hi
s 

dr
aw

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 fi

na
l o

r 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

un
til

 it
 is

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

.

4/5/2018
Design Review

A

At
ria

 R
oc

kl
in

 -
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

16R10

lrs...

Fl
oo

r &
 R

oo
f P

la
n

A2.1

10/27/2017

32
01

 S
an

ta
 F

e 
W

ay
, R

oc
kl

in
, C

A 
95

76
5

De
sig

n 
Re

vie
w 

-S
ho

p/
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
P1 1.01 Floor

1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
P2 Roof Plan

P
acket P

g. 3
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



1.01 Floor
169' - 0"

1.11 Plate
179' - 0 3/4"

S1

A5.1

S2

A5.1

10
' -

 0
 3

/4
"

Concrete 'S' Tile roofing, hip and
ridge caps to match existing

Stucco. Match existing texture and
color.

Fascia Gutter: Sheet Metal. Painted
Finish to match existing.

Door Trim to match existing. Wall trim and garage door detail to
match existing.

1.01 Floor
169' - 0"

1.11 Plate
179' - 0 3/4"

S1

A5.1

S2

A5.1

Wall trim and garage door detail to
match existing.

Stucco over 2xFlat nailers over wall
sheathing.

Painted image (white 
frame and gray for 
windows) for window 
appearance. Typical 
at rear elevation.

Weep Screed

Stucco over Conc. Retaining Wall

A

Head and sill trim to 
match window details.

1.01 Floor
169' - 0"

1.11 Plate
179' - 0 3/4"

2:1 Max

A

Weep Screed

Stucco

LE
W

IS
R SPRINGER

I I IL
I C

E

N S E D A R C H
I T

E
C

T

S
T

A
T

E
O F C A L I FO

R
N

I A

Ren: 08-31-19
No. C15138

LR
S.

..A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

   
--

--
   

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
A

cc
es

s 
S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 (

C
A

S
p)

(9
16

) 
99

5-
47

95
   

em
ai

l: 
LR

S
@

LR
S

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
.C

O
M

Project Information:

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Date:

Set: Sheet Title:

Sheet Number:

Revisions

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t c

on
ta

in
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 to

 L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
is

 fu
rn

is
he

d 
in

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

s 
an

 in
st

ru
m

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
co

nt
en

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 o
r

di
sc

lo
se

d 
to

 o
th

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

rio
r 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t o

f L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e.
  A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.
T

hi
s 

dr
aw

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 fi

na
l o

r 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

un
til

 it
 is

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

.

4/5/2018
Design Review

A

At
ria

 R
oc

kl
in

 -
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

16R10

lrs...

El
ev

at
io

ns

A4.1

10/27/2017

32
01

 S
an

ta
 F

e 
W

ay
, R

oc
kl

in
, C

A 
95

76
5

De
sig

n 
Re

vie
w 

-S
ho

p/
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

1/4" = 1'-0"A4.1
E1 Front (South) Elevation

1/4" = 1'-0"A4.1
E2 Rear (North) Elevation

1/4" = 1'-0"A4.1
E4 Left Side (West) Elevation

1/4" = 1'-0"A4.1
E3 Right Side (East) Elevation

Existing Building

P
acket P

g. 3
5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



1.01 Floor
169' - 0"

1.11 Plate
179' - 0 3/4"

10
' -

 0
 3

/4
"

Concrete retaining wall

Existing grade.

Existing retaining wall

Concrete slab-on-grade

Concrete 'S' Tile roofing, hip and
ridge caps to match existing

New Fascia: 2x8 Fascia. Painted
Finish.

Stucco. Match existing texture and
color.

5/8" GypBoard Ceiling

1.01 Floor
169' - 0"

1.11 Plate
179' - 0 3/4"

Concrete 'S' Tile roofing, hip and
ridge caps to match existing

New Fascia: 2x8 Fascia. Painted
Finish.

Stucco. Match existing texture and
color.

Concrete retaining wall

Existing grade.

Existing retaining wall

Concrete slab-on-grade

LE
W

IS
R SPRINGER

I I IL
I C

E

N S E D A R C H
I T

E
C

T

S
T

A
T

E
O F C A L I FO

R
N

I A

Ren: 08-31-19
No. C15138

LR
S.

..A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

   
--

--
   

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
A

cc
es

s 
S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
 (

C
A

S
p)

(9
16

) 
99

5-
47

95
   

em
ai

l: 
LR

S
@

LR
S

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
.C

O
M

Project Information:

Project Number:

Drawn by:

Date:

Set: Sheet Title:

Sheet Number:

Revisions

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t c

on
ta

in
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 to

 L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
is

 fu
rn

is
he

d 
in

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

s 
an

 in
st

ru
m

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ro

je
ct

. T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
co

nt
en

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 o
r

di
sc

lo
se

d 
to

 o
th

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

rio
r 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t o

f L
R

S
...

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e.
  A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.
T

hi
s 

dr
aw

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 fi

na
l o

r 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

un
til

 it
 is

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

.

At
ria

 R
oc

kl
in

 -
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

16R10

lrs...

Se
ct

io
ns

A5.1

10/27/2017

32
01

 S
an

ta
 F

e 
W

ay
, R

oc
kl

in
, C

A 
95

76
5

De
sig

n 
Re

vie
w 

-S
ho

p/
St

or
ag

e 
Bu

ild
in

g

1/4" = 1'-0"A5.1
S1 Section 1

1/4" = 1'-0"A5.1
S2 Section 2

P
acket P

g. 3
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



Sheet Number:

Set:

Sheet Title:

LRS...Architecture
LEWIS R. SPRINGER, III

Architect, Certified Access Specialist (CASp)
916 995-4795

LRS@LRSARCHITECTURE.COM

Project: Project Number: Date:

CBColor Board

Design Review - Shop/Storage Building
Atria Rocklin - Storage

Building
3201 Santa Fe Way, Rocklin, CA 95765

16R10
11/09/17

All materials, finishes, textures, 
and colors to match existing.

P
acket P

g. 3
7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 3
8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 3
9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review, DR2018-0003 

 
 

June 19, 2018 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Subject to the recommended conditions of approval, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN OPERATING AGREEMENT 
FOR A DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN, CITY OF ROCKLIN AND ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC 
INTERSTATE 80 AT WEST MARINE. (West Marine Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A DESIGN REVIEW (West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to construct an 
approximately 65-foot-tall digital freeway sign adjacent to Highway 80 and an Operating 
Agreement for use of the sign. If approved, this sign would be constructed in lieu of a 
similar sign which was previously approved on the nearby Mercedes-Benz of Rocklin 
property. 
 
General Site Information 
 
The subject site is located on the southern corner of the commercial center located at 
4445 Granite Drive, directly adjacent to Highway 80. The site is the current location of 
West Marine. Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 045-080-036. See Figure 1 for an aerial 
vicinity map with the proposed location of the digital sign overlaid in yellow. 

Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

Figure 1 – Aerial Vicinity Map 

 
 

Owner/Applicant 
 
The applicant is Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC (Beau Palley). The property owner is Acorn 
Property Management and Development Company, LLC (Audrey Gannon).   
 
Background and Site Characteristics  
 
The City of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program was adopted in 2012 via Ordinance No. 
979. The program allows for up to three digital freeway signs to be located within the 
City, as follows: one on the I-80 corridor, one on the SR-65 by-pass, and one on the 
balance of the SR 65 corridor. The Digital Freeway Sign Program also includes a 
description of what constitutes a digital freeway sign, when and how they are 
permitted, standards for illumination, minimum display time, maximum face size, 
application of future technologies, and digital face replacement requirements.  
 
Consistent with the Digital Freeway Sign Program, two digital freeway signs have been 
approved and installed along State Route 65, one adjacent to the by-pass route area off 
of Five Star Boulevard, and one between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard. The latter sign is the subject of a relocation project which is being processed 
concurrently by the City.  

Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
 
A third digital freeway sign was approved to be located at the Mercedes Benz dealership 
along I-80 via City Council Resolution No. 2012-37 (Attachment 1). However, this digital 
freeway sign was never installed. It is now proposed that the I-80 digital freeway sign be 
relocated approximately 1,300 feet to the northeast along I-80 to a parking 
lot/landscape portion of the existing West Marine business.  
 
The original project approval for the Mercedes Benz site was last extended on July 12, 
2016 by City Council Resolution No. 2016-190, and was scheduled to expire on February 
28, 2018. However, as part of a settlement agreement for the project, the City has 
agreed that it will not deem the original design review as expired, unless and until the 
project receives review approval and a building permit for the proposed West Marine 
location. If these two items are not satisfied, the original entitlements for the Mercedes 
Benz site would be retained and a project extension would be required. 
 
Approving Authority 
 
Section 17.75.090 of the Rocklin Municipal Code (RMC) states that all digital freeway 
signs are subject to Design Review. While the Planning Commission is typically the 
designated approving authority for Design Review entitlements, Section 17.72.070 of 
the RMC states that the City Council is the authority for all nonresidential buildings or 
structures greater than 40 feet in height. Because the digital billboard sign exceeds this 
height requirement, and because the operation of digital freeway signs requires 
approval of an Operating Agreement, the City Council is the approving authority for the 
project, subject to Planning Commission recommendation.  
 
General Plan and Zoning Compatibility 
 
The project site is designated as Retail Commercial (RC) in the Rocklin General Plan and 
is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) within the Sierra Meadows General 
Development Plan. The proposed project is compatible with the existing General Plan 
designation and Zoning, subject to issuance of a Design Review and Operating 
Agreement, pursuant to Section 17.75.090 of the RMC. 
 
Design Review 
 
The project site is an improved parking lot located directly adjacent to the West Marine 
building between Granite Drive and Highway 80. According to Section 17.75.090 of the 
RMC, a digital freeway sign shall not exceed 65 feet in height, as measured from the 
centerline of the nearest freeway to the top of the sign or structure. Each sign face is 
permitted to be no larger than 14 feet by 48 feet in dimension (total 672 square feet) 

Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
plus framing. The digital billboard sign is proposed at 65 feet tall, with a sign face 
totaling 672 square feet in area. See Figure 2.  
 

Figure 2 – Digital Sign Elevation 

 

 
The billboard sign pole would be located approximately 25 feet east of the neighboring 
property line, and 28 feet north of the Highway 80 right-of-way. In order to site the pole 
in this location, an existing parking curb would be relocated approximately 3 feet to 
east. This would allow construction of the sign without resulting in any net loss to 
parking within the lot. In this location, the face of the sign (which is approximately 49 
feet above the freeway centerline grade) would be located approximately 15 feet east 
of the neighboring property line and 4 feet north of the Highway 80 right-of-way fence. 
See Figure 3.  
 
This project would extend over a 15-foot-wide SPMUD easement, which traverses the 
site along the Highway 80 right-of-way. At the request of SPMUD, the project has been 
conditioned that it will be required to enter into an encroachment permit with SPMUD 
for the construction of the billboard sign face within the air space of the existing 
easement. The agreement shall include provisions that SPMUD is not responsible for the 

Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 
sign, should it be damaged during the course of the District’s operations and 
maintenance activities.  
 

Figure 3 – Digital Sign Site Plan 

 
 

The site contains an existing storm drain catch basin, which was installed with the 
construction of the parking lot. Leading to the catch basin are two storm drain pipes. 
The first, which runs from east to west into the catch basin, is a 6-inch galvanized pipe. 
The second, which runs from north to south into the catch basin, is a 15-inch pipe. The 
location of the proposed sign pole is unlikely to impact either drainage pipe. However, 
the project has been conditioned that the developer will be responsible to repair any 
damage which may be done to either of these pipes as a result of project construction.  
 
Sign Design and Materials 
 
The digital freeway sign has been proposed to match the colors and materials of the 
existing digital sign designs in the City of Rocklin. With the exception of the sign face, 
the entirety of the structure would be colored with a combination of champagne and 
silver. See Figures 4 and 5 for photo simulations which illustrate how the sign would 
look from Highway 80.  
 
 

Packet Pg. 44

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

Figure 4 – Photo simulation (Eastbound w/ West Face of Sign) 

 
 

Figure 5 – Photo simulation (Westbound w/ East Face of Sign) 

 

Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 
Levels of Illumination 
 
The proposed electronic display would feature automatic light level controls to adjust 
the sign display at night and during other darkened conditions. The sign would be 
equipped with light monitors that detect the ambient light levels and would 
automatically adjust the display brightness levels based on these conditions. The light 
intensity of the display would be set to meet the regulations of the RMC, which states 
that digital freeway signs shall not operate at brightness levels of more than 0.3 foot 
candles above ambient light, as measured using a foot candle meter at a pre-set 
distance of 250 feet. The sign has been conditioned to comply with this requirement.  
 
Architectural Review Committee 
 
The project site is located the Granite Architectural District. On April 5, 2018, the project 
was presented to the Architectural Review Committee (ARC). The ARC stated that the 
sign appeared to be consistent with other digital freeway signs within the City and had 
no comments regarding the size or design. The ARC voted to recommend approval of 
the project.   
 
Operating Agreement 
 
Pursuant to RMC Section 17.75.090(C), digital freeway signs shall only be permitted 
when the City has entered into an operating agreement with a digital freeway sign 
owner to allow for digital billboards under certain circumstances, including 
compensation to the City; the provision for the City to access the billboard for messages 
of community information, interest, and public safety; use of the billboard for the 
display of “Amber Alert” messages and emergency disaster communications; and the 
establishment of quality and maintenance standards.  
 
Similar to existing digital sign operating agreements between the City and other sign 
operators, the City and Orion 50 will enter into an operating agreement under which 
Orion will pay a maximum administrative fee to City of $2,000/month with a 2% annual 
escalator starting in year 7. Orion will display Amber Alert messages and will allow the 
City to promote non-commercial City and community messages on a space available 
basis. The proposed operating agreement negotiated between the City and Orion 50 has 
been reviewed by the City Attorney and was found to be in compliance with the 
requirements of the RMC. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend 
that the City Council approve the proposed operating agreement, as indicated in the 
draft resolution for approval included with this packet. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 8 
 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
In 2012, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) prepared for the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program was approved per City Council Resolution 2012-35. Project specific analysis was 
conducted for the three sites that were proposed at the time (one at the by-pass route 
area of SR 65 off of Five Star Boulevard, one along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks 
Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard, and one along I-80 at the Mercedes Benz 
dealership) and potential impacts of the implementation of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program, including construction and operation of the proposed signs, were identified in 
the MND document. All of the potentially significant environmental impacts of the 
project identified in the MND were mitigated to a less than significant level. 
 
The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review project involves: 1) re-locating the 
digital freeway sign that was approved but never installed at the Mercedes Benz 
dealership along I-80 to the improved parking lot/landscape area of the existing West 
Marine business along I-80 located at 4445 Granite Drive, and 2) modifying the design of 
the proposed sign to better fit at the new location. The sign, as proposed, would be 
consistent with the City of Rocklin’s Digital Sign Program (Rocklin Municipal Code 
17.75.090). These changes were reviewed in a 15162 Analysis, which was prepared by 
the City and included as Attachment 2 to this packet, and summarized below.  
 
The analysis found that the original Digital Freeway Sign MND adequately evaluated the 
potential environmental impacts of the development of the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review project. The MND contemplated three digital freeway signs 
overall, including one to be located along I-80 on the Mercedes Benz site.  Although the 
new digital freeway sign is proposed approximately 1,300 feet northeast of the 
Mercedes site, the design of the proposed sign, the physical characteristics of the 
proposed site, its adjacency to the I-80, and the relative proximity to the original 
location are all such that the findings and conclusions of the MND adequately address 
the current application.  
 
Like the Mercedes Benz site, the physical setting of the proposed West Marine location 
has been previously disturbed by development and now functions as improved parking 
lot/landscape areas. Given this, the new location does not represent any significant 
differences in potential environmental impacts that are specific to a project’s location 
(i.e., aesthetics, some aspects of air quality, agricultural resources, biological resources, 
cultural resources, hazards and hazardous materials, some aspects of noise, and some 
aspects of transportation/traffic). 
 
Because the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review will introduce the same 
development (the placement of a digital freeway sign) that is consistent with what was 

Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
June 19, 2018 
Page 9 
 
 
anticipated by the original project, and because the development would be consistent 
with the surrounding, existing, and anticipated development and would not include any 
aspects that would introduce new or increased environmental impacts, it was 
determined that it would be appropriate to rely upon the prior MND  for purposes of 
CEQA compliance. Based on the analysis provided above, no new significant 
environmental impacts would occur and no substantial increases in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects would be anticipated. None of the conditions 
described in CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163 and 15164 calling for the 
preparation of a supplement, subsequent or addendum to a negative declaration or EIR 
are present, and therefore, no subsequent or EIR or supplemental EIR or addendum to 
an EIR is required pursuant to CEQA. Mitigation Measures which were included with the 
previously-approved MND have been included with the proposed project as Conditions 
of Approval. No further environmental review is necessary. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1) City Council Resolution No. 2012-37 
2) CEQA Analysis - 15162 

 
 
Prepared by Nathan Anderson, Senior Planner 
 
 

  

Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 54

Agenda Item #8.



Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #8.



P
acket P

g. 5
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 5
7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 5
8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 5
9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 6
0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 6
1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



1 
 

West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review (DR2018-0003) and  
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review (DR2017-0015) 

 
15162 Analysis 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects consist of the following: 1) a request for a Design Review 
entitlement to install a new digital freeway billboard sign along Interstate 80 (I-80) in the 
improved parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business located at 4445 
Granite Drive, and 2) a request for the relocation of the existing digital freeway billboard 
sign located along State Route 65 (SR-65) between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard to a new location approximately 80 feet to the south in the improved parking lot 
area of the existing Rocklin 65 Office and Business Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree 
Boulevard.  
 
The new West Marine Digital Freeway Sign will be approximately 65 feet tall with a 672 
square foot (14’ x 48’) screen facing both directions of traffic on I-80.The existing digital 
freeway sign along State Route 65 that will be relocated would not involve any 
modifications to the height or total area of the existing sign (45 feet tall, 672 square foot 
screen [14’ x 48’] facing both directions of traffic on SR-65).  
 
Both digital freeway billboard signs will be consistent with the City of Rocklin’s Digital Sign 
Program, which is discussed below.  
 
CITY OF ROCKLIN DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN PROGRAM (Rocklin Municipal Code 17.75.090) 
 
The City of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program allows for up to three digital freeway signs 
in the City, separated as follows: one on the I-80 corridor, one on the SR-65 by-pass route, 
and one on the balance of the SR 65 corridor. The Digital Freeway Sign Program also 
includes a description of what constitutes a digital freeway sign, when and how they are 
permitted, standards for illumination, minimum display time, maximum face size, 
application of future technologies, and digital face replacement requirements.  
 
Consistent with the Digital Freeway Sign Program, two digital freeway signs have been 
installed along State Route 65, one at the by-pass route area off of Five Star Boulevard, and 
one between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard; the latter is the subject of the 
relocation project as described above under the Project Description heading. A third digital 
freeway sign was approved to be located at the Mercedes Benz dealership along I-80, 
however this digital freeway sign was never installed and it is now proposed that the I-80 
digital freeway sign location as allowed under the City’s program be relocated to the 
parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business, as described above under 

Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #8.



2 
 

the Project Description heading. The West Marine business is located approximately 1,300 
feet to the northeast along I-80 from the Mercedes Benz dealership. 
 
PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
In 2012, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Digital Freeway Sign Program was 
approved per City Council Resolution 2012-35. Project specific analysis was conducted for 
the three sites that were proposed at the time (one at the by-pass route area of SR 65 off of 
Five Star Boulevard, one along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard, and one along I-80 at the Mercedes Benz dealership) and potential impacts of 
the Digital Freeway Sign Program were identified in the MND document. All of the 
potentially significant environmental impacts of the project identified in the MND were 
mitigated to a less than significant level. 
 
RELIANCE ON PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
The potential environmental impacts of the Digital Freeway Sign Program project were 
analyzed as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in an Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration which was previously approved by the Rocklin City 
Council acting as the lead agency through Resolution 2012-35. Once a project has been 
approved, the lead agency’s role in project approvals is completed, unless further 
discretionary approval on that project is required. In this case, because the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation projects are requesting additional 
land use entitlements (Design Review) and further discretionary approval, the City must 
examine the adequacy of the prior environmental review.  

 
Public Resources Code section 21166 and Section 15162 provide the framework for analysis 
of the adequacy of prior environmental review of a subsequent project. The questions that 
must be addressed when making a determination of whether further environmental review 
would be necessary are as follows: 
 

1) Do Proposed Changes Involve New Significant Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines, will substantial changes 
represented by the current project result in new significant impacts that have not already 
been considered and mitigated by the prior environmental review or a substantial increase 
in the severity of a previously identified significant impact? 
 

2) Are There Any New Circumstances Involving New Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, have there been substantial 
changes to the project site or vicinity (circumstances under which the project is undertaken) 
which have occurred subsequent to the prior environmental document, which would result 
in the current project having new significant environmental impacts that were not 
considered in the prior environmental document or that substantially increase the severity 
of a previously identified impact?  

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #8.



3 
 

3) Is There Any New Information Requiring New Analysis or Verification? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(3)(A-D) of the CEQA Guidelines, is there new information of 
substantial importance which was not known and could not have been known with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous environmental document was 
adopted as complete that is now available requiring an update to the analysis of the 
previous environmental document to verify that the environmental conclusions and 
mitigations remain valid? If the new information shows that: 
 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the prior 

environmental documents; or 
(B) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the prior environmental documents; or 
(C) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; or 

(D) That mitigation measures or alternative which are considerably different from those 
analyzed in the prior environmental documents would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative, then the preparation of a subsequent or 
supplemental EIR would be required. 
 

If the additional analysis completed finds that the conclusions of the prior environmental 
documents remain the same and no new significant impacts are identified, or identified 
environmental impacts are not found to be more severe, or additional mitigation is not 
necessary, then no additional environmental documentation (supplemental or subsequent 
EIR or subsequent negative declaration) is required. 
 
COMPARISON OF THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED PACIFIC TECH PARK PROJECT AND ITS MND: 
 
The adopted Digital Freeway Sign MND addressed the implementation and development of 
the Digital Freeway Sign Program project as follows: 
 

• A General Plan Amendment (GPA-2011-01) to re-designate the land use for a small 
portion of City owned property adjacent to State Route 65 from 
Recreation/Conservation to Retail Commercial; 

• A Rezone (Z-2011-01) to change the zoning applicable to a small portion of City 
owned property adjacent to State Route 65 from Open Space to Planned 
Development - Commercial; 

• A Zoning Ordinance Amendment (ZOA-2008-01) to amend the City of Rocklin Zoning 
Code to add a Digital Freeway Sign Program which will allow a limited number of 
digital freeway sign structures;  

• Design Review (DR-2008-07A and DR-2008-07B) for three digital freeway sign 
structures 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #8.



4 
 

The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects involve: 1) re-locating the third digital freeway sign that was 
approved but never installed at the Mercedes Benz dealership along I-80 to the improved 
parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business along I-80 located at 4445 
Granite Drive, and 2) moving the existing digital freeway billboard sign located along State 
Route 65 (SR-65) between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard to a new location 
approximately 80 feet to the south in the existing parking lot of the Rocklin 65 Office and 
Business Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree Boulevard. The signs at both locations would be 
consistent with the City of Rocklin’s Digital Sign Program (Rocklin Municipal Code 
17.75.090). These changes are analyzed below. 
 
IMPACT ANALYSIS:  
 
1) Aesthetics – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 

Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will introduce the 
same digital freeway signs into relatively the same project areas as were previously 
considered and analyzed (the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign would be located in an 
existing improved parking lot/landscape area approximately 1,300 feet to the northeast 
along I-80 from the previously considered, analyzed and approved Mercedes Benz 
dealership location, and the sign associated with the Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
project would move the existing sign along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks 
Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard to a new location approximately 80 feet to the 
south in the improved parking lot area of the existing Rocklin 65 Office and Business 
Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree Boulevard). The areas surrounding the existing digital 
freeway sign along State Route 65 and the proposed relocation site include Retail 
Commercial uses and a highway facility, and the areas surrounding the proposed 
Mercedes Benz digital freeway sign site and the proposed West Marine site also include 
Retail Commercial uses and a freeway facility. The previously approved Mercedes Benz 
digital freeway sign was approved at an overall height of 48 feet as measured from the 
center line of the nearest freeway to the top of the digital sign structure, and the 
proposed West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review project is proposing an 
overall height of 65 feet; this additional 17 feet is not anticipated to result in any new 
aesthetic impacts or substantially more severe aesthetic impacts. The placement of 
digital freeway signs in the locations being proposed is consistent with the surrounding 
existing and anticipated development and does not include any aspects that would 
introduce new aesthetic impacts. 

 
Light and glare from the existing digital freeway sign to be relocated along State Route 
65 to the Rocklin 65 Office and Business Plaza already exists, but the digital freeway sign 
and its associated light and glare will be moved approximately 80 feet to the south. The 
West Marine digital freeway sign will introduce new a new source of light and glare to 
the project area, however there are already existing sources of light and glare in that 
location from freeway frontage signage and retail commercial uses. The brightness of 
the LED display on digital freeway signs is subject to adjustment based on ambient 

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #8.



5 
 

conditions. The display, for example, is adjustable, so it may be brighter in the daytime 
than in the darkness. The digital freeway signs have automatic light level controls to 
adjust light levels at night and during other darkened conditions. The signs come 
equipped with ambient light monitors that detect the external lightness or darkness and 
will automatically adjust the brightness level of the signs based on ambient light 
conditions. A photo-sensor adjusts the sign’s lighting levels to below 65 percent of sign 
power during nighttime hours are required by the California energy code, and the light 
intensity of the displays can be preset to meet brightness regulations prescribed by local 
regulations (the City of Rocklin’s Digital Freeway Sign Program regulates illumination 
levels to no more than 0.3 foot candles above ambient light and requires a light sensing 
device that will adjust the brightness as ambient light conditions change). Furthermore, 
restrictions on digital signs, imposed and enforced by Caltrans for traffic safety reasons, 
preclude lighting that would be directed at motorists that is so direct or intense that it 
could blind or confuse drivers, or create conditions that make recognition of the 
roadway or official signage difficult. The resulting controls effectively regulate light and 
glare to ensure that the operation of any digital billboard does not create a substantial 
new source of light or glare. This determination is consistent with the prior 
determination that was made in the Digital Freeway Sign MND regarding less than 
significant light and glare impacts. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant aesthetic impacts or substantially 
more severe aesthetic impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
aesthetic impacts or substantially more severe aesthetic impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of aesthetics impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 

 
2) Agricultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 

Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
occur in locations that are designated as urban and built up land and are not located 
within or adjacent to land in productive agriculture or lands zoned for agricultural uses 
or timberland production and do not introduce any new agricultural resources impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant agricultural resources impacts or 

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #8.



6 
 

substantially more severe agricultural resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant agricultural resources impacts or substantially more severe 
agricultural resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of agricultural resources impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

3) Air Quality - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in similar 
construction and operational air quality emissions due to no changes in the number or 
screen size of the digital freeway signs and the vehicle trips associated with minimal on-
site maintenance that will be generated by the projects. The proposed locational 
changes do not result in any change to the type or intensity of development beyond 
what was previously considered and analyzed within the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and 
does not include any aspects that would introduce new air quality impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant air quality impacts or substantially 
more severe air quality impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant air 
quality impacts or substantially more severe air quality impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of air quality impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

4) Biological Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
result in the placement of two digital freeway signs in the different footprint areas as 
compared to those that were previously analyzed and approved. However, the new 
footprint areas for the digital freeway signs are located within areas that have been 
previously disturbed as a result of development and now function as improved parking 
lot/landscape areas at existing businesses; these locations do not represent riparian 
areas or wetlands/waters of the U.S., nor are they anticipated to support any special-
status plant or animal species. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #8.



7 
 

Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant biological resources impacts or 
substantially more severe biological resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant biological resources impacts or substantially more severe 
biological resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of biological resources impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital 
Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

5) Cultural Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
the placement of two digital freeway signs in the different footprint areas as compared 
to those that were previously analyzed and approved. However, the new footprint areas 
for the digital freeway signs are located within previously disturbed and now improved 
parking lot/landscape areas at existing businesses. While these locations do not contain 
any historic resources and are not anticipated to contain cultural resources, there is 
always the potential to discover unknown resources as was contemplated in the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND. Such potential was reduced to a less than significant level 
with mitigation measures that were identified in the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and 
those same mitigation measures would be applicable to the current projects. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant cultural resources impacts or 
substantially more severe cultural resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant cultural resources impacts or substantially more severe cultural 
resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of cultural resources impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital 
Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required.  
 

6) Geology and Soils - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
type of development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, the development associated with the 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects would be subject to compliance with the City’s development 
review process and the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications and 

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #8.



8 
 

the Uniform Building Code which will reduce any potential geology and soils impacts to 
a less than significant level. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant geology and soils impacts or 
substantially more severe geology and soils impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant geology and soils impacts or substantially more severe geology 
and soils impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. 
The analysis of geology and soils impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is 
applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway 
Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

7) Greenhouse Gas Emissions – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation projects will result in 
similar construction and operational air quality/greenhouse gas emissions due to no 
changes in the number or screen size of the digital freeway signs and associated 
construction emissions and vehicle trips associated with minimal on-site maintenance 
that will be generated by the projects. In addition, the changes contemplated by the 
projects will result in similar electricity usage due to no changes in the number or screen 
size of the digital freeway signs. The proposed locational changes do not result in any 
change to the type or intensity of development beyond what was previously considered 
and analyzed within the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and does not include any aspects 
that would introduce new air quality/greenhouse gas emissions impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant greenhouse gas emissions impacts 
or substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions impacts; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant greenhouse gas emissions impacts or 
substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of greenhouse gas 
emissions impacts above is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further 
analysis is required. 
 

8) Hazards and Hazardous Materials - the changes contemplated by the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #8.



9 
 

consistent with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in 
different locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with 
the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign 
Relocation Design Review projects would be subject to compliance with various Federal, 
State, and local laws and regulations (including but not limited to Titles 8 and 22 of the 
Code of California Regulations, Uniform Fire Code, and Chapter 6.95 of the California 
Health and Safety Code) addressing hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection which will reduce any hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection impacts to a less than significant level. The West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects do not include any unusual uses of hazardous materials. In addition, the project 
sites are not on the list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government 
Code Section 65962.5, the project sites are not located within an airport land use plan 
or within the vicinity of a private airstrip, the projects design and layout will not impair 
or physically interfere with the street system emergency evacuation route or impede an 
emergency evacuation plan, and the projects will be reviewed by the Rocklin Fire 
Department and will be designed with adequate emergency access for use by the 
Rocklin Fire Department to reduce the risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 
fires. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant hazards and hazardous materials 
impacts or substantially more severe hazards and hazardous materials impacts that have 
not already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant hazards and hazardous materials impacts or 
substantially more severe hazards and hazardous materials impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of hazards and 
hazardous materials impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

9) Hydrology and Water Quality - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would also be subject to the mitigation measures incorporated into 
Rocklin General Plan goals and policies, the City’s Grading and Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 15.28), the 
Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), 

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #8.



10 
 

and the City’s Improvement Standards to reduce impacts to hydrology and water quality 
to a less than significant level. In addition, the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review project sites are located in 
flood zone X, which indicates that the projects are not located within a 100-year flood 
hazard area and outside of the 500-year flood hazard area. The project sites are not 
located within the potential inundation area of any dam or levee failure, nor is the 
project site located sufficiently near any significant bodies of water or steep hillsides to 
be at risk from inundation by a seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. Because of the limited size 
of the impact area associated with each digital freeway sign (6’ x 6’) and because of the 
existing drainage infrastructure at each digital freeway sign site, the construction and 
operation of the digital freeway signs is not anticipated to generate significant 
additional stormwater runoff. Therefore, the projects will not expose people or 
structures to a significant risk or loss, injury, or death as a result of flooding and a less 
than significant flood exposure impact would be anticipated. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant hydrology and water quality 
impacts or substantially more severe hydrology and water quality impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant hydrology and water quality impacts or 
substantially more severe hydrology and water quality impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of hydrology and water 
quality impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

10) Land Use and Planning - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, the projects would be consistent with 
the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The construction of the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would not physically divide an established community and would be compatible 
with nearby existing and anticipated land uses. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant land use and planning impacts or 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #8.



11 
 

substantially more severe land use and planning impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant land use and planning impacts or substantially more severe 
land use and planning impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of land use and planning impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

11) Mineral Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would occur on sites that do not contain known mineral resources and the 
project is not anticipated to have a mineral resources impact. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects as described above are not anticipated to result in new significant mineral 
resources impacts or substantially more severe mineral resources impacts that have 
not already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant mineral resources impacts or substantially 
more severe mineral resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new 
analysis or verification. The analysis of mineral resources impacts within the Digital 
Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

12) Noise - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would be anticipated to generate noise levels similar to those that would occur 
with the original project. Digital freeway signs are not anticipated to have significant 
long-term operational noise impacts nor result in a substantial permanent or temporary 
increase in ambient noise levels. 
 

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #8.



12 
 

In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects as described above are not anticipated to result in new significant noise 
impacts or substantially more severe noise impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant noise impacts or substantially more severe noise impacts, and 
there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of noise 
impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

13) Population and Housing - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would maintain the same number and screen size of digital freeway 
signs as was previously approved. The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will not directly generate 
employment at the project sites, do not contain areas designated for residential uses, 
nor do they contain existing housing. As such, the projects would not introduce 
unplanned growth or displace substantial numbers of people.  
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant population and housing impacts or 
substantially more severe population and housing impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant population and housing impacts or substantially more severe 
population and housing impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of population and housing impacts within the Digital 
Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

14) Public Services - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #8.



13 
 

Regardless of the different locations, development associated with West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
would not increase the need for fire protection, police patrol and police services to the 
sites beyond what was previously contemplated, and the need for other public facilities 
would not be created by the projects. The construction and operation of digital freeway 
signs would not require public services, except for cases of emergency, nor would they 
generate a need for additional public services. The construction and operation of digital 
freeway signs would not have an effect upon, nor would they result in a need for, fire 
and police protection. The operation of digital freeway signs may have a positive effect 
on law enforcement and emergency services if they are used to display information 
important to the traveling public. Similarly, the construction and operation of digital 
freeway signs would not have an effect upon schools, public facilities or other 
governmental services. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant public services impacts or 
substantially more severe public services impacts that have not already been considered 
by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new 
significant public services impacts or substantially more severe public services impacts, 
and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of 
public services impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

15) Recreation - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
would not be anticipated to increase the use of, and demand for, recreational facilities 
in a significant manner. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant recreation impacts or substantially 
more severe recreation impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
recreation impacts or substantially more severe recreation impacts, and there is no new 

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #8.



14 
 

information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of recreation impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

16) Transportation/Traffic - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will not 
result in an increase in the number of automobile trips generated by the previously 
approved project because the total number of digital freeway signs is not changing. The 
construction and operation of the digital signs would not result in an appreciable 
increase in vehicle trips. Other than trips generated from the construction and minimal 
maintenance of the digital sign, most of which is done remotely, no other vehicle trips 
will be made as a result of the project.  
 
The prior Digital Freeway Sign MND analyzed whether digital freeway signs could have 
potential impacts on traffic safety and determined that existing restrictions regarding 
location, intensity of light, light trespass, especially those enforced by the California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) under the agreements between the U.S. 
Department of Transportation under the Highway Beautification Act and the Outdoor 
Advertising Act, are anticipated to reduce potential traffic safety impacts to a less than 
significant level. In addition, the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND analyzed whether the 
project would result in potential traffic safety impacts as a result of the use of special 
visual effects and interactive signs and such potential was reduced to a less than 
significant level with mitigation measures that were identified in the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND. Those same mitigation measures would be applicable to the current projects. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant transportation/traffic impacts or 
substantially more severe transportation/traffic impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant transportation/traffic impacts or substantially more severe 
transportation/traffic impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of transportation/traffic impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

17) Tribal Cultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #8.



15 
 

locations. While the Digital Freeway Sign MND was prepared and adopted prior to the 
requirement to address tribal cultural resources in CEQA documents, because Public 
Resources Code section 21080.3.3 requires consultation to occur prior to the release of 
a negative declaration, mitigated negative declaration or EIR for a project and the City 
intends to rely upon the previous MND for the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, there is no 
opportunity to incorporate additional mitigation measures for the protection of tribal 
cultural resources. 
 

18) Utilities and Service Systems - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would not increase the need for utilities and service systems to the site 
beyond what was previously contemplated, and the need for other utilities and public 
services would not be created by the project. The proposed project will require 
additional electrical supply and conveyance infrastructure, but will not require water 
supply and conveyance and treatment facilities, solid waste conveyance and landfill 
facilities, gas supply and conveyance infrastructure, and other utilities and services 
typical of commercial development. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant utilities and service systems 
impacts or substantially more severe utilities and service systems impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant utilities and service systems impacts or 
substantially more severe utilities and service systems impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of utilities and service 
systems impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Digital Freeway Sign MND evaluated the potential environmental impacts of the 
development of the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway 
Sign Relocation Design Review projects. The Digital Freeway Sign MND contemplated three 
digital freeway signs overall, but the one new digital freeway sign (West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review) and the relocated digital sign (Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #8.



16 
 

Design Review) are proposed in different locations than those previously analyzed, as 
described above under the Project Description heading. The physical setting of the new 
different locations have been previously disturbed as a result of development and now 
function as improved parking lot/landscape areas at existing businesses, so the new 
locations do not represent any potential differences in potential environmental impacts 
that are specific to a project’s location (i.e., aesthetics, some aspects of air quality, 
agricultural resources, biological resources, cultural resources, hazards and hazardous 
materials, some aspects of noise, and some aspects of transportation/traffic). 
 
 Because the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign 
Relocation Design Review projects will introduce the same development (the placement of 
two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with what was anticipated by the original 
project, and the development would be consistent with the surrounding existing and 
anticipated development and does not include any aspects that would introduce new or 
increased environmental impacts, it was determined that the prior MND would be 
appropriate to rely upon for purposes of CEQA compliance. Based on the analysis provided 
above, no new significant environmental impacts would occur and no substantial increases 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects would be anticipated. None of the 
conditions described in CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163 and 15164 calling for the 
preparation of a supplement, subsequent or addendum to a negative declaration or EIR are 
present, and therefore, no subsequent or EIR or supplemental EIR or addendum to an EIR is 
required pursuant to CEQA.  
 
In summary, the analysis conducted to determine if further environmental review would be 
necessary has resulted in the determination that the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects do not result in 
any environmental impacts beyond those that were previously identified and no further 
environmental review is necessary. 
 

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #8.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2018- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN OPERATING AGREEMENT 

FOR A DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN, CITY OF ROCKLIN AND ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC 
INTERSTATE 80 AT WEST MARINE  

(WEST MARINE DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A. The purpose of the Freeway Digital Sign Program is to manage 
development of freeway advertising structures by removing outdated billboard 
structures, reducing the total number of freeway billboards, and updating the freeway 
advertising to state of the art electronic messaging which will provide area businesses 
with additional advertising opportunities in a manner that minimizes visual clutter and 
provides an orderly, attractive, high quality image of the City. 
  

B. The Freeway Digital Sign Program facilities can be quickly and effectively 
utilized to present critically important “Amber Alert” and other public safety messages 
to the community. 

 
C.  Approval of Design Review (DR2018-0003) authorizes the construction of 

a digital freeway sign on the property at the existing West Marine site - 4445 Granite 
Drive (APN 045-080-036). 
 

D.  The development of the project site was analyzed as required by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts (MND), 
approved and certified by City Council Resolution No. 2012-35. Pursuant to Section 
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign is required, nor should be conducted, since the project is within the 
scope of the Digital Freeway Sign Program MND which adequately describe these 
activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons: 

 
i) No new significant environmental impacts nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant impacts will occur from 
the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign project. 
 

ii) No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 
which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of 
the previous MND due to the involvement of new significant 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 2 
to Reso. No. 2018- 

environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant impacts. 

 
iii) No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the previous MND was certified as complete shows any of the 
following: 

 
a. That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous MND; 
 

b. That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous MND;  

 
c. That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
d. That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous MND would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
environment, but the project proponents declined to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
E.  City of Rocklin and Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC desire to complete the 

necessary operating agreement required to implement the City’s Digital Freeway Sign 
Program on Interstate 80.  

 
 
Section 2. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby 

recommends that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the Operating Agreement for a Digital Freeway Sign on the I-80 corridor in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference incorporated herein. 
  

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 2 
to Reso. No. 2018- 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this       day of                     , 2018 by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
 
 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Pierre Martinez, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
  
 
       
Secretary 
 
  

Packet Pg. 80

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. 2018- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

(Digital Freeway Sign Program/I-80 Corridor Site)  
Operating Agreement for Digital Freeway Sign  

City of Rocklin and Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC  

Packet Pg. 81

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 82

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 83

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 84

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 85

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 86

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 87

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 88

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 89

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 90

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 91

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 92

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 93

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 94

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 95

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 96

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 97

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 98

Agenda Item #8.a.



Packet Pg. 99

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 1 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

RESOLUTION NO. PC-2018- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A DESIGN REVIEW  

(Design Review – West Marine Digital Freeway Sign) 
(DR2018-0003) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A. Approval of Design Review (DR-2018-0003) is required to authorize the 
construction of a digital freeway sign in a parking / landscape area of at the existing 
West Marine facility - 4445 Granite Drive (APN 045-080-036). 
 

B.  The development of the project site was analyzed as required by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts (MND), 
approved and certified by City Council Resolution No. 2012-35. Pursuant to Section 
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign is required, nor should be conducted, since the project is within the 
scope of the Digital Freeway Sign Program MND which adequately describe these 
activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons: 

 
i) No new significant environmental impacts nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant impacts will occur from 
the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign project. 
 

ii) No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 
which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of 
the previous MND due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant impacts. 

 
iii) No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the previous MND was certified as complete shows any of the 
following: 

 
a. That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous MND; 
 

Packet Pg. 100

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 2 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

b. That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous MND;  

 
c. That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
d. That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous MND would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
environment, but the project proponents declined to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
C. Due to the application of operating provisions contained within the City 

of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program, the sign will not create any adverse glare or 
light impacts on adjoining properties. 
 

D. The dimensions, placement, and design of the sign are compatible with 
the existing building and structures, surrounding development and the environment.  
 

E. The design of the structure is consistent with the goals, policies, and land 
use designations in the General Plan and will comply with all the standards, regulations, 
and restrictions outlined in Section 17.75.090 and other applicable sections of the 
Rocklin Municipal Code.  
 

Section 2. The Design Review (DR2018-0003) for a digital freeway sign at the 
West Marine site, as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein, is hereby recommended for approval by the City Council of the City 
of Rocklin, subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern 
the design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 
incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other 
plans, specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be 
specifically applicable to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within 
the condition for approval.  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely 
responsible for satisfying each condition prior to issuance of the building permit. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, 
dedication requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  
Pursuant to Government Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written 
notice of the amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, 
reservations, and other exactions. 

Packet Pg. 101

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 3 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing 
from the date of approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a 
protest regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation 
requirements or other exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the 
requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred 
from later challenging such exactions. 

 
B. Conditions 
 
 1. Sign Design and Operation 

 
a. The sign shall conform to the provisions of the City of Rocklin 
 Digital Freeway Sign Program and the sign design, materials and 
 location as shown on Exhibit A.  (PLANNING) 
 
b. The sign shall meet the structural design requirements of the 

California Building Code and the electrical design and installation 
requirements of the California Electric Code.  Plans for the 
structural design shall be prepared by a California Licensed 
Engineer or Architect and the electrical design by a qualified 
licensed professional.  (BUILDING) 

 
c. Installation and operation of the sign shall conform to all 

applicable state and federal regulations including the Outdoor 
Advertising Act.  (BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 
d. The operation of the digital signs shall comply with the following 
 at all times: 

 
1) No special visual effects that include moving or flashing 

lights shall accompany the transition between two 
successive messages, and no special visual effects shall 
accompany any message display. 

 
2) Both screens shall be coordinated such that image changes 

occur simultaneously and not in an alternating fashion, or 
the image on the top screen may remain static while the 
primary screen changes, but in no case shall changes to 
the screens be alternating in such a way as to create a 
flashing or blinking effect.  

 
3) The operator shall report to the City of Rocklin its 

intention of installing, implementing or using any 

Packet Pg. 102

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 4 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

technology that would allow interaction with drivers, 
vehicles or any device located in vehicles, including, but 
not limited to a radio frequency identification device, 
geographic positions system, or other device, a minimum 
of 30 days in advance of such operation, and shall not 
proceed with such operation until approved by the City of 
Rocklin. 

 (MITIGATION MEASURE XVI-1) 
 
4)  The sign shall be subject to all requirements of Section 

17.75.090 of the Rocklin Municipal Code.  (PLANNING, CITY 
ATTORNEY) 

 
2. Utilities  

 
a. All utilities shall be provided to the project in compliance with all 

standards and requirements of the applicable provider. (UTILITY 
PROVIDERS) 
 

b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall enter into an 
encroachment permit with the South Placer Municipal Utility District 
(SPMUD) for the construction of the digital billboard sign within the 
air space of the existing easement. The agreement shall include 
provisions that SPMUD is not responsible for the digital billboard sign 
should it be damaged during the course of the District’s operations 
and maintenance activities. (PLANNING, SPMUD) 

 
c. Prior to building permit issuance the property owner shall enter into 

an encroachment permit with the South Placer Municipal Utility 
District (SPMUD) for the existing freestanding sign adjacent to the 
freeway that was constructed within the existing easement and over 
the District’s sewer pipe.  The agreement shall include provisions that 
SPMUD is not responsible for the sign should it be damaged during 
the course of the District’s operations and maintenance activities. 
(PLANNING, SPMUD) 

 
3. Geotechnical Information 
 
 Application for a building permit shall be accompanied by all necessary 

geotechnical and site boring information.  (BUILDING) 
 
4.  Biological Resources 
 

Packet Pg. 103

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 5 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

a. If construction activities occur during the breeding season (February 1 
through August 31), the developer shall require pre-construction 
surveys of the site to be conducted by a qualified biologist approved 
by the City. The surveys shall cover all areas of suitable nesting 
habitat within 500 feet of project activity and shall be conducted 
within 14 days prior to the commencement of project activity. The 
surveys shall be valid for one construction season. If no active nests 
are found, no further mitigation shall be required. 
 

b. If active nests are found, impacts shall be avoided by the 
establishment of appropriate buffers. No project activity shall 
commence within the buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms 
that the nest is no longer active. The California Department of Fish 
and Game (CDFG) guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot 
buffers, but the size of the buffer may be adjusted if a qualified 
biologist determines through consultation with CDFG (or United 
States Fish and Wildlife for federal species of concern) that 
construction activities would not be likely to adversely affect the nest. 
Monitoring of the nest by a qualified biologist may be required if the 
activity has the potential to adversely affect the nest.  
(MITIGATION MEASURE IV-1) 

 
5. Cultural Resources 
 

The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 
 
If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of 
shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, 
structure/building remains) is made during project-related construction 
activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted and 
a qualified professional archaeologist and the United Auburn Indian 
Community (UAIC) shall be notified regarding the discovery. The 
archaeologist shall determine whether the resource is potentially 
significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a historical resource, a unique 
archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and shall 
develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to 
mitigate impacts to the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light 
of costs, logistics, technological considerations, the location of the find, 
and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation of the find is 
consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. 
Specific measures for significant or potentially significant resources 
would include, but are not necessarily limited to, preservation in place, 
in-field documentation, archival research, subsurface testing, and 

Packet Pg. 104

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 6 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and 
temporal extent, and cultural associations, and would be developed in a 
manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise 
mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  

 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human 
remains, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or 
any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human 
remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) 
and (2) of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98, has occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work 
shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner 
shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and 
Safety Code. The City’s Community Development Director shall also be 
notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner will notify the 
Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will inform a most 
likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the 
landowner appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, 
and the landowner shall comply with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
(MITIGATION MEASURE V-1) 

 
6. De-watering if Groundwater Encountered 
 

The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 

 
 If ground water is detected and de-watering is determined to be 

necessary, arrangements shall immediately be implemented to ensure 
that such water is collected within an appropriate pump truck or other 
acceptable collection method and transported for proper disposal at an 
approved location to the satisfaction of the Building Official.  (BUILDING, 
PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
7. Soil Removal and Disposal 
 

The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 

 
 All dirt/soil extracted as part of the sign installation shall be collected, 

covered  and transported from the site for disposal at an approved 
landfill or other location deemed acceptable to the satisfaction of the 
Building Official.  (BUILDING, PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 
 

Packet Pg. 105

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 7 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

8. Ongoing Tree Maintenance 
 

a. Prior to building permit issuance and the onset of any tree 
maintenance activities, the height and general condition of all 
trees to be maintained in the vicinity of the digital freeway sign 
shall be documented by the applicant. This documentation 
(arborist report, photographs and other) shall be submitted to the 
Economic and Community Development Director for review and 
acceptance. 

 
 Existing native and/or ornamental trees located in the vicinity of 

the digital sign may be maintained such that the height of the 
trees does not exceed existing levels. However, maintenance 
practices shall not be permitted which significantly alter the 
natural shape, form or viability of the trees. Ongoing maintenance 
shall be to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director.  

 (PLANNING) 
 

a. In the event that the existing native and/or ornamental trees in 
the vicinity of the digital sign are significantly damaged through 
ongoing maintenance (e.g. pruning),  those over-pruned trees 
may be required to be replaced. Species and size of all 
replacement trees  shall be to the satisfaction of the Economic 
and Community Development Director.   (PLANNING) 
 

9.  On-site Construction 
 

The developer shall be responsible for any damage to on-site drainage 
facilities, paving, landscaping, trash enclosures, etc. which may occur as a 
result of project construction. If any damage occurs, the developer shall 
be responsible to repair / restore the above to  original condition, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 

 
10. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 

 
Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer 
shall execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s 
Office, to indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of 
Rocklin and its agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an 
approval of the entitlement by the City’s planning commission or City 
Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for in 

Packet Pg. 106

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 8 of 
Reso No. PC-2018- 

Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify 
the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will 
cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, 
plan checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall 
be performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully 
executed within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
11. Validity 
 

a. This approval shall expire in two years from the date of approval 
unless prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a 
time extension has been granted.  (PLANNING) 

 
b. Design Review (DR2018-0003) shall not be considered valid and 

approved unless and until the concurrent Operating Agreement 
between the applicant and City as required by the Digital Freeway 
Sign Program has been approved by the City Council. 

 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this       day of                     , 2018 by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Pierre Martinez, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
  
 
       
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 107

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A  
To Reso No. PC-2018- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

(Design Review – West Marine Digital Freeway Sign) 
(DR2018-0003) 

 
 

 
 
 

Packet Pg. 108

Agenda Item #8.b.



60” Hole

Storm Drain
Catch Basin

New Curb

Current Curb (Move to East.)

48” 
Pole 

SPMUD Sewer L
ine

20’ U
tili

ty Ease
m

ent

20’

15’

28’

25 ’

15 ’

20 ’

48  ’

4 ’

6” s
to

rm
 drain

SW Corn
er o

f P
/L

State R/W
 Fence

15” storm drain

West P/L

Trash Can

Tra
sh

 En
clo

su
re

Trash Can

14’x 48’ FULL FLAG @ 64.5‘ 
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   West Marine Plaza LP ET AL
APPLICANT:
   LAW OFFICE OF JOHN DAVID PEREIRA

LAW OFFICE OF JOHN DAVID PEREIRA

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘ h  
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

ARIAL SITE PLAN OF 4445 GRANITE DR. SITE • FOR 64.5FT DIGITAL SIGN • COMMERCIAL AND NON-COMMERCIAL USE

Stall now is 1
1’ wide

Make 8’ w
ide 

per C
ity

 Code

EXHIBIT A
DR2018-0003

P
acket P

g. 1
0

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



FREEWAY CENTERLINE

PARKING LOT

POLE PAINTED 
SILVER & CHAMPANGE

State Fence / PL

APRON SILVER

672 SQ. FT.

64
’ -

 5
” O

VE
RA

LL 
HE

IG
HT

59
’ -

 0
”

 

INTERSTATE 80

A. COLOR KEY fOR STEEL STRUCTURE: SILVER AND CHAMPANGE
B. LIGHTING: D/F NON ILLUMINATED
 -PIXEL DENSITY: PLAN USING DAKTRONICS
 -20 MM PITCH
 -0.3 FOOT CANDELS OR LOWER PER 17.75.090(I)
C. ELECTRICAL SERVICE:
 -EST. 50AMP PER PANEL
D. LED COLOR:
 -FULL COLOR
F. CABINET SIZE: 
 -14.1 x 48.2
G. SIGN MATERIALS: STEEL PAINTED SILVER
H. DIGITAL SIGN FACES - 672 sq. ft. PER SIDE

SCALE
2ft.

      
   

       
5-080-03
 PD-C

     
        
 

        

        

     

        

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘h 
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1 7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

4.5’

4
8
’-

5
”

2
’-

0
”

1
4
’-

0
” 

FA
C

E

48’-0” FACE 

A  • 44     •  4 5    •    

( 28’ C.O.C ) to 
STATE R/W FENCE - PL 

P
acket P

g. 1
1

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



V  H T NG   • 4 4  G   S  • O  4 T  GN • C A   CO  

      
   

       

 
     

        
 

        

        

     

        

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘ h 
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

P
acket P

g. 1
1

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



R V  H T R R NG W T C  • 4445  R.  • R 4.5  G   • O R   ON O R  

      
   

       

 
     

        
 

        

        

     

        

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘ h 
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )P
acket P

g. 1
1

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



E  G TA  S G

E NG O E G
FOR WEST A E A A

AR A  T   O  5 R  R   • OR .  G TA  S G  • O M RC A  A  O CO RC  U

N

N  

Hwy 65

I-8
0

      
   

       

 PD-C
     

        
 

        

        

     

        

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘ h 
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

P
acket P

g. 1
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



M i s S p  o  
Actual chips, samples, and swatches (preferred) or colors shown as close as possible to the true colors proposed to be used

14’x 48’ FACES @ 64.5‘ h
30’ V-BUILD WITH ENCLOSURE
DIGITAL FACES BOTH SIDES/672 sq. ft. PER SIDE
APN#045-080-036-000
ZONING: PD-C
LAND AREA: ENTIRE PARCEL 1.7 ACRES
BUILDING AREA: 6’ x 6’ AREA FOR SIGN COLUMN
PROPERTY OWNER:
   Acorn Property Mgmt. and Development Co., LLC
APPLICANT:
   ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

ORION 50 OUTDOOR, LLC

4445 GRANITE DRIVE ( I-80 W/O SIERRA COLLEGE )

To Match Existing Digital Sign Designs in City of Rocklin
Colors:  

Column: Champange and Silver
Connections: Silver
Structure: Silver

Apron and Digital Display Cabinet: Silver

P
acket P

g. 1
1

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
Design Review, DR2017-0015 

 
 

June 19, 2018 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Subject to the recommended conditions of approval, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN OPERATING AGREEMENT 
FOR A DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN, CITY OF ROCKLIN AND CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR AT 
ROCKLIN 65 COMMERCE CENTER SITE. (Digital Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A DESIGN REVIEW (Digital 
Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to relocate an existing 
digital billboard sign from APN 365-020-032 to the south, approximately 90 feet, onto 
APN 365-310-033. There would be no modification to the design, height, or total area of 
the sign. 
 
General Site Information 
 
The subject site is located on the northwestern corner of the Rocklin 65 Office & Retail 
Plaza, located at 6500 Lonetree Boulevard, directly adjacent to Highway 65. Assessor 
Parcel Number (APN) 365-310-033. See Figure 1 for an aerial vicinity map with the 
proposed location shown with a red star.  
 

Packet Pg. 115

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

Figure 1 – Aerial Vicinity Map 

 
 

Owner/Applicant 
 
The applicant is Clear Channel Outdoor (Rob LaGrone). The property owner for the 
relocation site is Rocklin 65 LLC (John S. Foggy).   
 
Background and Site Characteristics  
 
The City of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program was adopted in 2012 via Ordinance No. 
979. The program allows for up to three digital freeway signs to be located within the 
City, as follows: one on the I-80 corridor, one on the SR-65 by-pass, and one on the 
balance of the SR 65 corridor. The Digital Freeway Sign Program also includes a 
description of what constitutes a digital freeway sign, when and how they are 
permitted, standards for illumination, minimum display time, maximum face size, 
application of future technologies, and digital face replacement requirements.  
 
Consistent with the Digital Freeway Sign Program, two digital freeway signs have been 
approved and installed along State Route 65.  One of these signs is adjacent to the by-
pass route area off of Five Star Boulevard, and is not proposed for any modification. The 

Packet Pg. 116

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
second of these signs is currently located between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard. This is the subject sign which is proposed for relocation.  
 
A third digital freeway sign was approved to be located at the Mercedes Benz dealership 
along I-80; however this digital freeway sign was never installed. It is now proposed that 
the I-80 digital freeway sign be relocated approximately 1,300 feet to the northeast 
along I-80 to a parking lot/landscape portion of the existing West Marine business. This 
sign is the subject of the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign project, which is being 
processed concurrently by the City. 
 
Approving Authority 
 
Section 17.75.090 of the Rocklin Municipal Code (RMC) states that all digital freeway 
signs are subject to Design Review. While the Planning Commission is typically the 
designated approving authority for Design Review entitlements, Section 17.72.070 of 
the RMC states that the City Council is the authority for all nonresidential buildings or 
structures greater than 40 feet in height. Because the digital billboard sign exceeds this 
height requirement, and because the operation of digital freeway signs requires 
approval of an Operating Agreement, the City Council is the approving authority for the 
project, subject to Planning Commission recommendation.  
 
General Plan and Zoning Compatibility 
 
The project site is designated as Retail Commercial (RC) in the Rocklin General Plan and 
is zoned Planned Development Business Professional/Commercial/Light Industrial (PD-
BP/C/LI) within the Sunset West General Development Plan. The proposed project is 
compatible with the existing General Plan designation and Zoning, subject to issuance of 
a Design Review and Operating Agreement, pursuant to Section 17.75.090 of the RMC. 
 
Design Review 
 
Existing Sign Location 
 
The existing digital freeway sign was approved on February 28, 2012 via City Council 
Resolution No. 2012-38 (Attachment 1). The sign was constructed in 2013. The sign is 45 
feet in height and approximately 672 square feet in total face area. See Figure 2 for 
photos of the existing sign.  
 
The sign is currently located on a vacant parcel, which is designated Recreation-
Conservation (R-C) in the Rocklin General Plan and is zoned Open Space (OS). The 
location is also within an open space easement. The primary reason for the proposed 

Packet Pg. 117

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
relocation is to move the sign out of this easement and onto the developed commercial 
property to the south.   
 

Figure 2 – Existing Digital Sign 

 
 

Proposed Sign Location 
 
The digital billboard sign is proposed to be relocated approximately 90 feet south of its 
existing location into an improved parking lot within the Rocklin 65 Office & Retail Plaza, 
which was constructed in 2007. The relocation would reuse the entire above-ground 
sign structure, which is bolted at ground level to the existing footing. A new footing 
would be installed at the proposed location. The height and face area of the sign would 
not be modified. 
 
The billboard sign pole would be relocated directly south of an existing trash enclosure 
within the developed parking area. The pole would be installed 31 feet east of the 
Highway 65 right-of-way and 62 feet south of the northern property line. In order to site 
the pole in this location, an existing 5 foot wide landscape planter located directly south 
of the trash enclosure would be widened to include the full width of the adjacent 
parking space. The column would be placed within this planter area in the location 
shown on Figures 3 and 4. The balance of the planter area would be installed with 
vegetation to match the existing site landscaping. While this conversion would result in 
the loss of one parking space, the Rocklin 65 Plaza contains hundreds of spaces and has 
a shared parking agreement throughout. The loss of a single parking space as a result of 
the proposed project would not be considered significant. 
 

Packet Pg. 118

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

Figure 3 – Proposed Sign Location 

 
 

The face of the sign is proposed to extend above the existing trash enclosure. As part of 
the referral process, the project was reviewed by Recology Auburn Placer. Recology 
stated that it has no objections to any freeway-oriented signage overhanging its 
enclosures, provided a 15-foot minimum clearance is provided. The proposed sign face 
would be located approximately 31 feet above the grade. Therefore, the proposed 
location above the enclosure is not anticipated to impact Recology waste collection 
vehicles on the site.  
 

  

Packet Pg. 119

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

Figure 4 – Proposed Site Plan 

 

 

As shown in Figure 4, the project site contains two easements within proximity to the 
proposed sign location. A 12.5-foot utility easement is located along the northern 
boundary of the site. The sign was originally proposed to be constructed along the 
northern property line, which would have resulted in encroachment into this easement. 
However, objections were brought forward by utility providers, resulting in the 
modification of the site plan to locate the sign further to the south as now proposed. As 
a result of this modification, no portion of the sign would encroach into the utility 
easement. In addition a 35-foot non-exclusive State easement is located along the 
western boundary of the site. No objections were raised by Caltrans as to the location of 
the sign within this easement as part of the project referral process.  
 
  

Packet Pg. 120

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 7 
 
 
Photo simulations 

The applicant has provided photo simulations which illustrate the minimal aesthetic 
change which would result from the relocation of the sign as viewed from Highway 65. 
Figure 5 illustrates the view of the sign in its current location, viewed from south on the 
highway. Figure 6 illustrates the view of the sign in its proposed location from the same 
viewpoint.  
 

Figure 5 – Current Sign Location 

 
 

Figure 6 – Proposed Sign Location 

 

Packet Pg. 121

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 8 
 
 
Levels of Illumination 
 
The electronic display features automatic light level controls to adjust the sign display at 
night and during other darkened conditions. The sign is equipped with light monitors 
that detect the ambient light levels and would automatically adjust the display 
brightness levels based on these conditions. The light intensity of the display will 
continue to meet the regulations of the RMC, which states that digital freeway signs 
shall not operate at brightness levels of more than 0.3 foot candles above ambient light, 
as measured using a foot candle meter at a pre-set distance of 250 feet. The sign has 
been conditioned to comply with this requirement.  
 
Architectural Review Committee 
 
On April 5, 2018, the project was presented to the Architectural Review Committee 
(ARC). The ARC stated that it had no objections to the proposed relocation. The ARC 
voted to recommend approval of the project.   
 
Operating Agreement 
 
Pursuant to RMC Section 17.75.090(C), digital freeway signs shall only be permitted 
when the City has entered into an operating agreement with a digital freeway sign 
owner to allow for digital billboards under certain circumstances, including 
compensation to the City; the provision for the City to access the billboard for messages 
of community information, interest, and public safety; use of the billboard for the 
display of “Amber Alert” messages and emergency disaster communications; and the 
establishment of quality and maintenance standards.  
 
Similar to existing digital sign operating agreements between the City and other sign 
operators, the City and Clear Channel Outdoor will enter into an operating agreement 
under which Clear Channel Outdoor will pay a maximum administrative fee to City of 
$2,000/month with a 2% annual escalator starting in year 7. Clear Channel Outdoor will 
display Amber Alert messages and will allow the City to promote non-commercial City 
and community messages on a space available basis. The proposed operating 
agreement negotiated between the City and Clear Channel Outdoor has been reviewed 
by the City Attorney and was found to be in compliance with the requirements of the 
RMC. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council 
approve the proposed operating agreement, as indicated in the draft resolution for 
approval included with this packet. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 122

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 9 
 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
In 2012, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) prepared for the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program was approved per City Council Resolution 2012-35. Project specific analysis was 
conducted for the three sites that were proposed at the time (one at the by-pass route 
area of SR 65 off of Five Star Boulevard, one along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks 
Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard, and one along I-80 at the Mercedes Benz 
dealership) and potential impacts of the implementation of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program, including construction and operation of the proposed signs, were identified in 
the MND document. All of the potentially significant environmental impacts of the 
project identified in the MND were mitigated to a less than significant level. 
 
The Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review project involves a request for the 
relocation of the existing digital freeway billboard sign located along Highway 65 
between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard to a new location 
approximately 90 feet to the south in the improved parking lot area of the existing 
Rocklin 65 Office and Business Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree Boulevard. These changes 
were reviewed in a 15162 Analysis, which was prepared by the City and included as 
Attachment 2 to this packet.  
 
The analysis found that the original Digital Freeway Sign MND adequately evaluated the 
potential environmental impacts of the relocation of the existing digital freeway sign. 
Although the new digital freeway sign location is proposed approximately 90 feet south 
of the originally approved location, the design of the sign, its adjacency to Highway 65, 
and the relative proximity to the original location are all such that the findings and 
conclusions of the MND adequately address the current application.  
 
Because the proposed Digital Billboard Sign Relocation will introduce the same 
development (the placement of a digital freeway sign) that is consistent with what was 
anticipated by the original project, and because the development would be consistent 
with the surrounding, existing, and anticipated development and would not include any 
aspects that would introduce new or increased environmental impacts, it was 
determined that it would be appropriate to rely upon the prior MND  for purposes of 
CEQA compliance. Based on the analysis provided above, no new significant 
environmental impacts would occur and no substantial increases in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects would be anticipated. None of the conditions 
described in CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163 and 15164 calling for the 
preparation of a supplement, subsequent or addendum to a negative declaration or EIR 
are present, and therefore, no subsequent or EIR or supplemental EIR or addendum to 
an EIR is required pursuant to CEQA. Mitigation Measures which were included with the 

Packet Pg. 123

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Digital Billboard Sign Relocation 
June 19, 2018 
Page 10 
 
 
previously-approved MND have been included with the proposed project as Conditions 
of Approval. No further environmental review is necessary. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1) City Council Resolution No. 2012-38 
2) CEQA Analysis - 15162 

 
 
Prepared by Nathan Anderson, Senior Planner 
 
 

  

Packet Pg. 124

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 125

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 126

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 127

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 128

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 129

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 130

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 131

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 132

Agenda Item #9.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 1
3

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



1 
 

West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review (DR2018-0003) and  
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review (DR2017-0015) 

 
15162 Analysis 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects consist of the following: 1) a request for a Design Review 
entitlement to install a new digital freeway billboard sign along Interstate 80 (I-80) in the 
improved parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business located at 4445 
Granite Drive, and 2) a request for the relocation of the existing digital freeway billboard 
sign located along State Route 65 (SR-65) between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard to a new location approximately 90 feet to the south in the improved parking lot 
area of the existing Rocklin 65 Office and Business Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree 
Boulevard.  
 
The new West Marine Digital Freeway Sign will be approximately 65 feet tall with a 672 
square foot (14’ x 48’) screen facing both directions of traffic on I-80.The existing digital 
freeway sign along State Route 65 that will be relocated would not involve any 
modifications to the height or total area of the existing sign (45 feet tall, 672 square foot 
screen [14’ x 48’] facing both directions of traffic on SR-65).  
 
Both digital freeway billboard signs will be consistent with the City of Rocklin’s Digital Sign 
Program, which is discussed below.  
 
CITY OF ROCKLIN DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN PROGRAM (Rocklin Municipal Code 17.75.090) 
 
The City of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program allows for up to three digital freeway signs 
in the City, separated as follows: one on the I-80 corridor, one on the SR-65 by-pass route, 
and one on the balance of the SR 65 corridor. The Digital Freeway Sign Program also 
includes a description of what constitutes a digital freeway sign, when and how they are 
permitted, standards for illumination, minimum display time, maximum face size, 
application of future technologies, and digital face replacement requirements.  
 
Consistent with the Digital Freeway Sign Program, two digital freeway signs have been 
installed along State Route 65, one at the by-pass route area off of Five Star Boulevard, and 
one between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard; the latter is the subject of the 
relocation project as described above under the Project Description heading. A third digital 
freeway sign was approved to be located at the Mercedes Benz dealership along I-80, 
however this digital freeway sign was never installed and it is now proposed that the I-80 
digital freeway sign location as allowed under the City’s program be relocated to the 
parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business, as described above under 

Packet Pg. 140

Agenda Item #9.



2 
 

the Project Description heading. The West Marine business is located approximately 1,300 
feet to the northeast along I-80 from the Mercedes Benz dealership. 
 
PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
In 2012, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Digital Freeway Sign Program was 
approved per City Council Resolution 2012-35. Project specific analysis was conducted for 
the three sites that were proposed at the time (one at the by-pass route area of SR 65 off of 
Five Star Boulevard, one along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks 
Boulevard, and one along I-80 at the Mercedes Benz dealership) and potential impacts of 
the Digital Freeway Sign Program were identified in the MND document. All of the 
potentially significant environmental impacts of the project identified in the MND were 
mitigated to a less than significant level. 
 
RELIANCE ON PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
The potential environmental impacts of the Digital Freeway Sign Program project were 
analyzed as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in an Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration which was previously approved by the Rocklin City 
Council acting as the lead agency through Resolution 2012-35. Once a project has been 
approved, the lead agency’s role in project approvals is completed, unless further 
discretionary approval on that project is required. In this case, because the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation projects are requesting additional 
land use entitlements (Design Review) and further discretionary approval, the City must 
examine the adequacy of the prior environmental review.  

 
Public Resources Code section 21166 and Section 15162 provide the framework for analysis 
of the adequacy of prior environmental review of a subsequent project. The questions that 
must be addressed when making a determination of whether further environmental review 
would be necessary are as follows: 
 

1) Do Proposed Changes Involve New Significant Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines, will substantial changes 
represented by the current project result in new significant impacts that have not already 
been considered and mitigated by the prior environmental review or a substantial increase 
in the severity of a previously identified significant impact? 
 

2) Are There Any New Circumstances Involving New Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, have there been substantial 
changes to the project site or vicinity (circumstances under which the project is undertaken) 
which have occurred subsequent to the prior environmental document, which would result 
in the current project having new significant environmental impacts that were not 
considered in the prior environmental document or that substantially increase the severity 
of a previously identified impact?  

Packet Pg. 141

Agenda Item #9.



3 
 

3) Is There Any New Information Requiring New Analysis or Verification? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(3)(A-D) of the CEQA Guidelines, is there new information of 
substantial importance which was not known and could not have been known with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous environmental document was 
adopted as complete that is now available requiring an update to the analysis of the 
previous environmental document to verify that the environmental conclusions and 
mitigations remain valid? If the new information shows that: 
 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the prior 

environmental documents; or 
(B) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the prior environmental documents; or 
(C) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; or 

(D) That mitigation measures or alternative which are considerably different from those 
analyzed in the prior environmental documents would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative, then the preparation of a subsequent or 
supplemental EIR would be required. 
 

If the additional analysis completed finds that the conclusions of the prior environmental 
documents remain the same and no new significant impacts are identified, or identified 
environmental impacts are not found to be more severe, or additional mitigation is not 
necessary, then no additional environmental documentation (supplemental or subsequent 
EIR or subsequent negative declaration) is required. 
 
COMPARISON OF THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED PACIFIC TECH PARK PROJECT AND ITS MND: 
 
The adopted Digital Freeway Sign MND addressed the implementation and development of 
the Digital Freeway Sign Program project as follows: 
 

• A General Plan Amendment (GPA-2011-01) to re-designate the land use for a small 
portion of City owned property adjacent to State Route 65 from 
Recreation/Conservation to Retail Commercial; 

• A Rezone (Z-2011-01) to change the zoning applicable to a small portion of City 
owned property adjacent to State Route 65 from Open Space to Planned 
Development - Commercial; 

• A Zoning Ordinance Amendment (ZOA-2008-01) to amend the City of Rocklin Zoning 
Code to add a Digital Freeway Sign Program which will allow a limited number of 
digital freeway sign structures;  

• Design Review (DR-2008-07A and DR-2008-07B) for three digital freeway sign 
structures 

Packet Pg. 142

Agenda Item #9.



4 
 

The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects involve: 1) re-locating the third digital freeway sign that was 
approved but never installed at the Mercedes Benz dealership along I-80 to the improved 
parking lot/landscape area of the existing West Marine business along I-80 located at 4445 
Granite Drive, and 2) moving the existing digital freeway billboard sign located along State 
Route 65 (SR-65) between Blue Oaks Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard to a new location 
approximately 90 feet to the south in the existing parking lot of the Rocklin 65 Office and 
Business Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree Boulevard. The signs at both locations would be 
consistent with the City of Rocklin’s Digital Sign Program (Rocklin Municipal Code 
17.75.090). These changes are analyzed below. 
 
IMPACT ANALYSIS:  
 
1) Aesthetics – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 

Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will introduce the 
same digital freeway signs into relatively the same project areas as were previously 
considered and analyzed (the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign would be located in an 
existing improved parking lot/landscape area approximately 1,300 feet to the northeast 
along I-80 from the previously considered, analyzed and approved Mercedes Benz 
dealership location, and the sign associated with the Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
project would move the existing sign along State Route 65 between Blue Oaks 
Boulevard and West Oaks Boulevard to a new location approximately 90 feet to the 
south in the improved parking lot area of the existing Rocklin 65 Office and Business 
Plaza located at 6550 Lonetree Boulevard). The areas surrounding the existing digital 
freeway sign along State Route 65 and the proposed relocation site include Retail 
Commercial uses and a highway facility, and the areas surrounding the proposed 
Mercedes Benz digital freeway sign site and the proposed West Marine site also include 
Retail Commercial uses and a freeway facility. The previously approved Mercedes Benz 
digital freeway sign was approved at an overall height of 48 feet as measured from the 
center line of the nearest freeway to the top of the digital sign structure, and the 
proposed West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review project is proposing an 
overall height of 65 feet; this additional 17 feet is not anticipated to result in any new 
aesthetic impacts or substantially more severe aesthetic impacts. The placement of 
digital freeway signs in the locations being proposed is consistent with the surrounding 
existing and anticipated development and does not include any aspects that would 
introduce new aesthetic impacts. 

 
Light and glare from the existing digital freeway sign to be relocated along State Route 
65 to the Rocklin 65 Office and Business Plaza already exists, but the digital freeway sign 
and its associated light and glare will be moved approximately 90 feet to the south. The 
West Marine digital freeway sign will introduce new a new source of light and glare to 
the project area, however there are already existing sources of light and glare in that 
location from freeway frontage signage and retail commercial uses. The brightness of 
the LED display on digital freeway signs is subject to adjustment based on ambient 

Packet Pg. 143

Agenda Item #9.



5 
 

conditions. The display, for example, is adjustable, so it may be brighter in the daytime 
than in the darkness. The digital freeway signs have automatic light level controls to 
adjust light levels at night and during other darkened conditions. The signs come 
equipped with ambient light monitors that detect the external lightness or darkness and 
will automatically adjust the brightness level of the signs based on ambient light 
conditions. A photo-sensor adjusts the sign’s lighting levels to below 65 percent of sign 
power during nighttime hours are required by the California energy code, and the light 
intensity of the displays can be preset to meet brightness regulations prescribed by local 
regulations (the City of Rocklin’s Digital Freeway Sign Program regulates illumination 
levels to no more than 0.3 foot candles above ambient light and requires a light sensing 
device that will adjust the brightness as ambient light conditions change). Furthermore, 
restrictions on digital signs, imposed and enforced by Caltrans for traffic safety reasons, 
preclude lighting that would be directed at motorists that is so direct or intense that it 
could blind or confuse drivers, or create conditions that make recognition of the 
roadway or official signage difficult. The resulting controls effectively regulate light and 
glare to ensure that the operation of any digital billboard does not create a substantial 
new source of light or glare. This determination is consistent with the prior 
determination that was made in the Digital Freeway Sign MND regarding less than 
significant light and glare impacts. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant aesthetic impacts or substantially 
more severe aesthetic impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
aesthetic impacts or substantially more severe aesthetic impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of aesthetics impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 

 
2) Agricultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 

Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
occur in locations that are designated as urban and built up land and are not located 
within or adjacent to land in productive agriculture or lands zoned for agricultural uses 
or timberland production and do not introduce any new agricultural resources impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant agricultural resources impacts or 

Packet Pg. 144

Agenda Item #9.



6 
 

substantially more severe agricultural resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant agricultural resources impacts or substantially more severe 
agricultural resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of agricultural resources impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

3) Air Quality - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in similar 
construction and operational air quality emissions due to no changes in the number or 
screen size of the digital freeway signs and the vehicle trips associated with minimal on-
site maintenance that will be generated by the projects. The proposed locational 
changes do not result in any change to the type or intensity of development beyond 
what was previously considered and analyzed within the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and 
does not include any aspects that would introduce new air quality impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant air quality impacts or substantially 
more severe air quality impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant air 
quality impacts or substantially more severe air quality impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of air quality impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

4) Biological Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
result in the placement of two digital freeway signs in the different footprint areas as 
compared to those that were previously analyzed and approved. However, the new 
footprint areas for the digital freeway signs are located within areas that have been 
previously disturbed as a result of development and now function as improved parking 
lot/landscape areas at existing businesses; these locations do not represent riparian 
areas or wetlands/waters of the U.S., nor are they anticipated to support any special-
status plant or animal species. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 

Packet Pg. 145

Agenda Item #9.



7 
 

Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant biological resources impacts or 
substantially more severe biological resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant biological resources impacts or substantially more severe 
biological resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of biological resources impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital 
Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

5) Cultural Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
the placement of two digital freeway signs in the different footprint areas as compared 
to those that were previously analyzed and approved. However, the new footprint areas 
for the digital freeway signs are located within previously disturbed and now improved 
parking lot/landscape areas at existing businesses. While these locations do not contain 
any historic resources and are not anticipated to contain cultural resources, there is 
always the potential to discover unknown resources as was contemplated in the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND. Such potential was reduced to a less than significant level 
with mitigation measures that were identified in the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and 
those same mitigation measures would be applicable to the current projects. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant cultural resources impacts or 
substantially more severe cultural resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant cultural resources impacts or substantially more severe cultural 
resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of cultural resources impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital 
Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required.  
 

6) Geology and Soils - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
type of development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, the development associated with the 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects would be subject to compliance with the City’s development 
review process and the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications and 

Packet Pg. 146

Agenda Item #9.



8 
 

the Uniform Building Code which will reduce any potential geology and soils impacts to 
a less than significant level. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant geology and soils impacts or 
substantially more severe geology and soils impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant geology and soils impacts or substantially more severe geology 
and soils impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. 
The analysis of geology and soils impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is 
applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway 
Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

7) Greenhouse Gas Emissions – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation projects will result in 
similar construction and operational air quality/greenhouse gas emissions due to no 
changes in the number or screen size of the digital freeway signs and associated 
construction emissions and vehicle trips associated with minimal on-site maintenance 
that will be generated by the projects. In addition, the changes contemplated by the 
projects will result in similar electricity usage due to no changes in the number or screen 
size of the digital freeway signs. The proposed locational changes do not result in any 
change to the type or intensity of development beyond what was previously considered 
and analyzed within the Digital Freeway Sign MND, and does not include any aspects 
that would introduce new air quality/greenhouse gas emissions impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant greenhouse gas emissions impacts 
or substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions impacts; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant greenhouse gas emissions impacts or 
substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of greenhouse gas 
emissions impacts above is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further 
analysis is required. 
 

8) Hazards and Hazardous Materials - the changes contemplated by the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is 

Packet Pg. 147

Agenda Item #9.



9 
 

consistent with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in 
different locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with 
the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign 
Relocation Design Review projects would be subject to compliance with various Federal, 
State, and local laws and regulations (including but not limited to Titles 8 and 22 of the 
Code of California Regulations, Uniform Fire Code, and Chapter 6.95 of the California 
Health and Safety Code) addressing hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection which will reduce any hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection impacts to a less than significant level. The West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects do not include any unusual uses of hazardous materials. In addition, the project 
sites are not on the list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government 
Code Section 65962.5, the project sites are not located within an airport land use plan 
or within the vicinity of a private airstrip, the projects design and layout will not impair 
or physically interfere with the street system emergency evacuation route or impede an 
emergency evacuation plan, and the projects will be reviewed by the Rocklin Fire 
Department and will be designed with adequate emergency access for use by the 
Rocklin Fire Department to reduce the risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 
fires. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant hazards and hazardous materials 
impacts or substantially more severe hazards and hazardous materials impacts that have 
not already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant hazards and hazardous materials impacts or 
substantially more severe hazards and hazardous materials impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of hazards and 
hazardous materials impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the 
West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 
Design Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

9) Hydrology and Water Quality - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would also be subject to the mitigation measures incorporated into 
Rocklin General Plan goals and policies, the City’s Grading and Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 15.28), the 
Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), 

Packet Pg. 148

Agenda Item #9.



10 
 

and the City’s Improvement Standards to reduce impacts to hydrology and water quality 
to a less than significant level. In addition, the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review project sites are located in 
flood zone X, which indicates that the projects are not located within a 100-year flood 
hazard area and outside of the 500-year flood hazard area. The project sites are not 
located within the potential inundation area of any dam or levee failure, nor is the 
project site located sufficiently near any significant bodies of water or steep hillsides to 
be at risk from inundation by a seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. Because of the limited size 
of the impact area associated with each digital freeway sign (6’ x 6’) and because of the 
existing drainage infrastructure at each digital freeway sign site, the construction and 
operation of the digital freeway signs is not anticipated to generate significant 
additional stormwater runoff. Therefore, the projects will not expose people or 
structures to a significant risk or loss, injury, or death as a result of flooding and a less 
than significant flood exposure impact would be anticipated. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant hydrology and water quality 
impacts or substantially more severe hydrology and water quality impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant hydrology and water quality impacts or 
substantially more severe hydrology and water quality impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of hydrology and water 
quality impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

10) Land Use and Planning - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will 
result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, the projects would be consistent with 
the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The construction of the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would not physically divide an established community and would be compatible 
with nearby existing and anticipated land uses. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant land use and planning impacts or 

Packet Pg. 149

Agenda Item #9.



11 
 

substantially more severe land use and planning impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant land use and planning impacts or substantially more severe 
land use and planning impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of land use and planning impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

11) Mineral Resources - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would occur on sites that do not contain known mineral resources and the 
project is not anticipated to have a mineral resources impact. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects as described above are not anticipated to result in new significant mineral 
resources impacts or substantially more severe mineral resources impacts that have 
not already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant mineral resources impacts or substantially 
more severe mineral resources impacts, and there is no new information requiring new 
analysis or verification. The analysis of mineral resources impacts within the Digital 
Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

12) Noise - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects would be anticipated to generate noise levels similar to those that would occur 
with the original project. Digital freeway signs are not anticipated to have significant 
long-term operational noise impacts nor result in a substantial permanent or temporary 
increase in ambient noise levels. 
 

Packet Pg. 150

Agenda Item #9.



12 
 

In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign 
MND analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects as described above are not anticipated to result in new significant noise 
impacts or substantially more severe noise impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant noise impacts or substantially more severe noise impacts, and 
there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of noise 
impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

13) Population and Housing - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would maintain the same number and screen size of digital freeway 
signs as was previously approved. The West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will not directly generate 
employment at the project sites, do not contain areas designated for residential uses, 
nor do they contain existing housing. As such, the projects would not introduce 
unplanned growth or displace substantial numbers of people.  
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant population and housing impacts or 
substantially more severe population and housing impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant population and housing impacts or substantially more severe 
population and housing impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of population and housing impacts within the Digital 
Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review 
and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

14) Public Services - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 

Packet Pg. 151

Agenda Item #9.



13 
 

Regardless of the different locations, development associated with West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
would not increase the need for fire protection, police patrol and police services to the 
sites beyond what was previously contemplated, and the need for other public facilities 
would not be created by the projects. The construction and operation of digital freeway 
signs would not require public services, except for cases of emergency, nor would they 
generate a need for additional public services. The construction and operation of digital 
freeway signs would not have an effect upon, nor would they result in a need for, fire 
and police protection. The operation of digital freeway signs may have a positive effect 
on law enforcement and emergency services if they are used to display information 
important to the traveling public. Similarly, the construction and operation of digital 
freeway signs would not have an effect upon schools, public facilities or other 
governmental services. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant public services impacts or 
substantially more severe public services impacts that have not already been considered 
by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new 
significant public services impacts or substantially more severe public services impacts, 
and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of 
public services impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects, and no further analysis is required. 
 

15) Recreation - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will result in 
development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different locations. 
Regardless of the different locations, development associated with West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
would not be anticipated to increase the use of, and demand for, recreational facilities 
in a significant manner. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant recreation impacts or substantially 
more severe recreation impacts that have not already been considered by the prior 
Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
recreation impacts or substantially more severe recreation impacts, and there is no new 

Packet Pg. 152

Agenda Item #9.



14 
 

information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of recreation impacts 
within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

16) Transportation/Traffic - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital Freeway 
Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects will not 
result in an increase in the number of automobile trips generated by the previously 
approved project because the total number of digital freeway signs is not changing. The 
construction and operation of the digital signs would not result in an appreciable 
increase in vehicle trips. Other than trips generated from the construction and minimal 
maintenance of the digital sign, most of which is done remotely, no other vehicle trips 
will be made as a result of the project.  
 
The prior Digital Freeway Sign MND analyzed whether digital freeway signs could have 
potential impacts on traffic safety and determined that existing restrictions regarding 
location, intensity of light, light trespass, especially those enforced by the California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) under the agreements between the U.S. 
Department of Transportation under the Highway Beautification Act and the Outdoor 
Advertising Act, are anticipated to reduce potential traffic safety impacts to a less than 
significant level. In addition, the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND analyzed whether the 
project would result in potential traffic safety impacts as a result of the use of special 
visual effects and interactive signs and such potential was reduced to a less than 
significant level with mitigation measures that were identified in the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND. Those same mitigation measures would be applicable to the current projects. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant transportation/traffic impacts or 
substantially more severe transportation/traffic impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new circumstances 
involving new significant transportation/traffic impacts or substantially more severe 
transportation/traffic impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis 
or verification. The analysis of transportation/traffic impacts within the Digital Freeway 
Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

17) Tribal Cultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 

Packet Pg. 153

Agenda Item #9.



15 
 

locations. While the Digital Freeway Sign MND was prepared and adopted prior to the 
requirement to address tribal cultural resources in CEQA documents, because Public 
Resources Code section 21080.3.3 requires consultation to occur prior to the release of 
a negative declaration, mitigated negative declaration or EIR for a project and the City 
intends to rely upon the previous MND for the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design 
Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects, there is no 
opportunity to incorporate additional mitigation measures for the protection of tribal 
cultural resources. 
 

18) Utilities and Service Systems - the changes contemplated by the West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects 
will result in development (the placement of two digital freeway signs) that is consistent 
with the development that was anticipated with the original project, albeit in different 
locations. Regardless of the different locations, development associated with the West 
Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design 
Review projects would not increase the need for utilities and service systems to the site 
beyond what was previously contemplated, and the need for other utilities and public 
services would not be created by the project. The proposed project will require 
additional electrical supply and conveyance infrastructure, but will not require water 
supply and conveyance and treatment facilities, solid waste conveyance and landfill 
facilities, gas supply and conveyance infrastructure, and other utilities and services 
typical of commercial development. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and 
Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects to the Digital Freeway Sign MND 
analysis, the anticipated changes associated with the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects as described 
above are not anticipated to result in new significant utilities and service systems 
impacts or substantially more severe utilities and service systems impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Digital Freeway Sign MND; there are no new 
circumstances involving new significant utilities and service systems impacts or 
substantially more severe utilities and service systems impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of utilities and service 
systems impacts within the Digital Freeway Sign MND is applicable to the West Marine 
Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review 
projects, and no further analysis is required. 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Digital Freeway Sign MND evaluated the potential environmental impacts of the 
development of the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway 
Sign Relocation Design Review projects. The Digital Freeway Sign MND contemplated three 
digital freeway signs overall, but the one new digital freeway sign (West Marine Digital 
Freeway Sign Design Review) and the relocated digital sign (Digital Freeway Sign Relocation 

Packet Pg. 154

Agenda Item #9.



16 
 

Design Review) are proposed in different locations than those previously analyzed, as 
described above under the Project Description heading. The physical setting of the new 
different locations have been previously disturbed as a result of development and now 
function as improved parking lot/landscape areas at existing businesses, so the new 
locations do not represent any potential differences in potential environmental impacts 
that are specific to a project’s location (i.e., aesthetics, some aspects of air quality, 
agricultural resources, biological resources, cultural resources, hazards and hazardous 
materials, some aspects of noise, and some aspects of transportation/traffic). 
 
 Because the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign 
Relocation Design Review projects will introduce the same development (the placement of 
two digital freeway signs) that is consistent with what was anticipated by the original 
project, and the development would be consistent with the surrounding existing and 
anticipated development and does not include any aspects that would introduce new or 
increased environmental impacts, it was determined that the prior MND would be 
appropriate to rely upon for purposes of CEQA compliance. Based on the analysis provided 
above, no new significant environmental impacts would occur and no substantial increases 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects would be anticipated. None of the 
conditions described in CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163 and 15164 calling for the 
preparation of a supplement, subsequent or addendum to a negative declaration or EIR are 
present, and therefore, no subsequent or EIR or supplemental EIR or addendum to an EIR is 
required pursuant to CEQA.  
 
In summary, the analysis conducted to determine if further environmental review would be 
necessary has resulted in the determination that the West Marine Digital Freeway Sign 
Design Review and Digital Freeway Sign Relocation Design Review projects do not result in 
any environmental impacts beyond those that were previously identified and no further 
environmental review is necessary. 
 

Packet Pg. 155

Agenda Item #9.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2018- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN OPERATING AGREEMENT 
FOR A DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN, CITY OF ROCKLIN AND CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR AT 

ROCKLIN 65 COMMERCE CENTER SITE  
(DIGITAL BILLBOARD SIGN RELOCATION) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A. The purpose of the Freeway Digital Sign Program is to manage 
development of freeway advertising structures by removing outdated billboard 
structures, reducing the total number of freeway billboards, and updating the freeway 
advertising to state of the art electronic messaging which will provide area businesses 
with additional advertising opportunities in a manner that minimizes visual clutter and 
provides an orderly, attractive, high quality image of the City. 
  

B. The Freeway Digital Sign Program facilities can be quickly and effectively 
utilized to present critically important “Amber Alert” and other public safety messages 
to the community. 

 
C.  Approval of Design Review (DR2017-0015) authorizes the relocation of a 

digital freeway sign from APN 365-020-032 to the south, approximately 90 feet, onto 
APN 365-310-033. There would be no modification to the design, height, or total area of 
the sign.  
 

D.  The development of the project site was analyzed as required by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts (MND), 
approved and certified by City Council Resolution No. 2012-35. Pursuant to Section 
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the Digital Billboard 
Sign Relocation is required, nor should be conducted, since the project is within the 
scope of the Digital Freeway Sign Program MND which adequately describe these 
activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons: 

 
i) No new significant environmental impacts nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant impacts will occur from 
the Digital Billboard Sign Relocation project. 
 

ii) No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 
which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of 

Packet Pg. 156

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page  2 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

the previous MND due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant impacts. 

 
iii) No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the previous MND was certified as complete shows any of the 
following: 

 
a. That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous MND; 
 

b. That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous MND;  

 
c. That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
d. That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous MND would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
environment, but the project proponents declined to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
E.  City of Rocklin and Clear Channel Outdoor desire to complete the 

necessary operating agreement required to implement the City’s Digital Freeway Sign 
Program on State Route 65.  

 
Section 2. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby 

recommends that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the Operating Agreement for a Digital Freeway Sign on the SR-65 corridor in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference incorporated herein. 
  

Packet Pg. 157

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page  3 of 
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this       day of                     , 2018 by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
 
 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Pierre Martinez, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
  
 
       
Secretary 
 
  

Packet Pg. 158

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. PC-2018- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

(Digital Freeway Sign Program/SR-65 Corridor Site)  
Operating Agreement for Digital Freeway Sign  

City of Rocklin and Clear Channel Outdoor  

Packet Pg. 159

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 160

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 161

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 162

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 163

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 164

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 165

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 166

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 167

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 168

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 169

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 170

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 171

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 172

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 173

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 174

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 175

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 176

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 177

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 178

Agenda Item #9.a.



Packet Pg. 179

Agenda Item #9.a.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A DESIGN REVIEW  

(Design Review – Digital Billboard Sign Relocation) 
(DR2017-0015) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A. Approval of Design Review (DR-2017-0015) is required to authorize the 
relocation of a digital freeway sign from APN 365-020-032 to the south, approximately 
90 feet, onto APN 365-310-033.  
 

B.  The development of the project site was analyzed as required by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the Digital Freeway Sign 
Program Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts (MND), 
approved and certified by City Council Resolution No. 2012-35. Pursuant to Section 
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the Digital Billboard 
Sign Relocation is required, nor should be conducted, since the project is within the 
scope of the Digital Freeway Sign Program MND which adequately describe these 
activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons: 

 
i) No new significant environmental impacts nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant impacts will occur from 
the Digital Billboard Sign Relocation project. 
 

ii) No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 
which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of 
the previous MND due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant impacts. 

 
iii) No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at 
the time the previous MND was certified as complete shows any of the 
following: 

 
a. That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous MND; 
 

Packet Pg. 180

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 2 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

b. That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous MND;  

 
c. That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents 
decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
d. That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous MND would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
environment, but the project proponents declined to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
C. Due to the application of operating provisions contained within the City 

of Rocklin Digital Freeway Sign Program, the sign will not create any adverse glare or 
light impacts on adjoining properties. 
 

D. There would be no modification to the design, height, or total area of the 
sign. The dimensions, placement, and design of the sign are compatible with the existing 
building and structures, surrounding development and the environment.  
 

E. The design of the structure is consistent with the goals, policies, and land 
use designations in the General Plan and will comply with all the standards, regulations, 
and restrictions outlined in Section 17.75.090 and other applicable sections of the 
Rocklin Municipal Code.  
 

Section 2. The Design Review (DR2017-0015) for a digital freeway sign 
relocation, as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein, is hereby recommended for approval by the City Council of the City of Rocklin, 
subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the design 
and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 
incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other 
plans, specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be 
specifically applicable to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within 
the condition for approval.  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely 
responsible for satisfying each condition prior to issuance of the building permit. 
 

Packet Pg. 181

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 3 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, 
dedication requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  
Pursuant to Government Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written 
notice of the amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, 
reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing 
from the date of approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a 
protest regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation 
requirements or other exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the 
requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred 
from later challenging such exactions. 

 
B. Conditions 
 
 1. Sign Design and Operation 

 
a. The sign shall conform to the provisions of the City of Rocklin 
 Digital Freeway Sign Program and the sign design, materials and 
 location as shown on Exhibit A.  (PLANNING) 
 
b. The sign shall meet the structural design requirements of the 

California Building Code and the electrical design and installation 
requirements of the California Electric Code.  Plans for the 
structural design shall be prepared by a California Licensed 
Engineer or Architect and the electrical design by a qualified 
licensed professional.  (BUILDING) 

 
c. Installation and operation of the sign shall conform to all 

applicable state and federal regulations including the Outdoor 
Advertising Act.  (BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 
d. The operation of the digital signs shall comply with the following 
 at all times: 

 
1) No special visual effects that include moving or flashing 

lights shall accompany the transition between two 
successive messages, and no special visual effects shall 
accompany any message display. 

 
2) Both screens shall be coordinated such that image changes 

occur simultaneously and not in an alternating fashion, or 

Packet Pg. 182

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 4 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

the image on the top screen may remain static while the 
primary screen changes, but in no case shall changes to 
the screens be alternating in such a way as to create a 
flashing or blinking effect.  

 
3) The operator shall report to the City of Rocklin its 

intention of installing, implementing or using any 
technology that would allow interaction with drivers, 
vehicles or any device located in vehicles, including, but 
not limited to a radio frequency identification device, 
geographic positions system, or other device, a minimum 
of 30 days in advance of such operation, and shall not 
proceed with such operation until approved by the City of 
Rocklin. 

 (MITIGATION MEASURE XVI-1) 
 
4)  The sign shall be subject to all requirements of Section 

17.75.090 of the Rocklin Municipal Code.  (PLANNING, CITY 
ATTORNEY) 

 
2. Utilities  

 
a. All utilities shall be provided to the project in compliance with all 

standards and requirements of the applicable provider. (UTILITY 
PROVIDERS) 
 

3. Geotechnical Information 
 
 Application for a building permit shall be accompanied by all necessary 

geotechnical and site boring information.  (BUILDING) 
 
4. Cultural Resources 
 

The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 
 
If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of 
shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, 
structure/building remains) is made during project-related construction 
activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted and 
a qualified professional archaeologist and the United Auburn Indian 
Community (UAIC) shall be notified regarding the discovery. The 
archaeologist shall determine whether the resource is potentially 
significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a historical resource, a unique 

Packet Pg. 183

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 5 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and shall 
develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to 
mitigate impacts to the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light 
of costs, logistics, technological considerations, the location of the find, 
and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation of the find is 
consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. 
Specific measures for significant or potentially significant resources 
would include, but are not necessarily limited to, preservation in place, 
in-field documentation, archival research, subsurface testing, and 
excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and 
temporal extent, and cultural associations, and would be developed in a 
manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise 
mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  

 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human 
remains, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or 
any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human 
remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) 
and (2) of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98, has occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work 
shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner 
shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and 
Safety Code. The City’s Community Development Director shall also be 
notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner will notify the 
Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will inform a most 
likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the 
landowner appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, 
and the landowner shall comply with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
(MITIGATION MEASURE V-1) 

 
5. De-watering if Groundwater Encountered 
 

The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 

 
 If ground water is detected and de-watering is determined to be 

necessary, arrangements shall immediately be implemented to ensure 
that such water is collected within an appropriate pump truck or other 
acceptable collection method and transported for proper disposal at an 
approved location to the satisfaction of the Building Official.  (BUILDING, 
PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
6. Soil Removal and Disposal 

Packet Pg. 184

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 6 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

 
The following information shall be included as a note on the Building 
Plans: 

 
 All dirt/soil extracted as part of the sign installation shall be collected, 

covered  and transported from the site for disposal at an approved 
landfill or other location deemed acceptable to the satisfaction of the 
Building Official.  (BUILDING, PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 
 

6.  On-site Construction 
 

a. The developer shall be responsible for any damage to on-site 
drainage facilities, paving, landscaping, trash enclosures, etc. which 
may occur as a result of project construction. If any damage occurs, 
the developer shall be responsible to repair / restore the above to  
original condition, to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director. 
(ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 

b. The widened landscape planter directly south of the trash enclosure 
shall be installed with vegetation to match the existing site 
landscaping, to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director.  
(ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 

c. The previous location of the sign pole on APN 365-020-032 shall be 
improved and hydro seeded with a drought tolerant mix of native 
grasses and flowers to be aesthetically consistent with the 
surrounding property, to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director.  
(ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 

 
7. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 

 
Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer 
shall execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s 
Office, to indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of 
Rocklin and its agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an 
approval of the entitlement by the City’s planning commission or City 
Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for in 
Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify 
the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will 
cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 

Packet Pg. 185

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 7 of  
Reso. No. PC-2018- 

waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, 
plan checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall 
be performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully 
executed within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
8. Validity 
 

a. This approval shall expire in two years from the date of approval 
unless prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a 
time extension has been granted.  (PLANNING) 

 
b. Design Review (DR2017-0015) shall not be considered valid and 

approved unless and until the concurrent Operating Agreement 
between the applicant and City as required by the Digital Freeway 
Sign Program has been approved by the City Council. 

 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this       day of                     , 2018 by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
 
 
  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Pierre Martinez, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
  
 
       
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 186

Agenda Item #9.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
To Reso No. PC-2018 

EXHIBIT A 
 

(Design Review – Digital Billboard Sign Relocation) 
(DR2017-0015) 

 
 

 
 
 

Packet Pg. 187

Agenda Item #9.b.



CLEAR  CHANNEL  OUTDOOR 

Planned digital sign placement upon relocation 

6550 Lonetree Boulevard, Rocklin, CA 

Column placement indicated by red circle, above.  With cladding, column’s diameter is 

roughly 5 feet.  (Actual column shown below.) 

Column placement 

EXHIBIT A
DR2017-0015

Packet Pg. 188

Agenda Item #9.b.



HIGHWAY  65  DIGITAL  BILLBOARD  RELOCATION 

East side of highway, 0.62 miles north of Blue Oaks Blvd. 

 

 

Above:  current sign position, viewed from south on highway 

 

Above:  proposed new location, approximately 80 feet south of current position 

Packet Pg. 189

Agenda Item #9.b.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.b

.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

 
GRAZING PROGRAM UPDATES TO RMC SECTION 17.78 – LARGE ANIMALS 

 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment, ZOA2018-0003 

 
 

June 19, 2018 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends Planning Commission approval of the following: 
  
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKLIN TO AMEND A SECTION OF TITLE 17 OF THE ROCKLIN MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARDING THE CITY’S WEED ABATEMENT AND OPEN SPACE MANAGEMENT GRAZING 
PROGRAM AND THE KEEPING OF LARGE ANIMALS (ZOA2018-0003)  
 
The Planning Commission’s action would be a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Proposed Ordinance Amendment 
 

This Ordinance Amendment would modify Section 17.78.010 to clarify that the 
keeping of goats and sheep on properties within the City is allowed if a grazing 
permit has been issued pursuant to Rocklin Municipal Code (RMC) Section 6.36.050 
and the animals are kept consistent with the City’s Weed Abatement and Open 
Space Management Grazing Program. 

 
Proponent 
 
The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment was initiated by the City of Rocklin. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 191

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
RMC Amendment - Grazing 
June 19, 2018 
Page 2 
 
Location 
 
The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment would apply Citywide. 
 
Background / Analysis 
 
On April 28, 2009, City Council approved Resolution 2009-73 authorizing a Grazing 
Management Program for Weed Abatement and Open Space Management and 
approving the Weed Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program 
Regulations and Permit Conditions. 
 
In February 2016, the Weed Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program 
Regulations and Permit Conditions were modified to include policies and procedures for 
a Herd Health Management Program.  
 
In April 2018, staff found it necessary to update and clarify language of the Weed 
Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program Regulations and Permit 
Conditions (Grazing Permit) to do the following: 1) Transfer requirements for 
performing and maintaining animal health and husbandry from the City to the 
Contractor; 2) define enforcement steps, and 3) Decrease liability to the City and 
transfer it to the Contractor. A copy of the updated Grazing Permit is included with this 
staff report for your use and information, see Attachment 1. 
 
During the legal review of the above-referenced Grazing Permit updates, staff identified 
language in RMC Section 17.78 – Large Animals which was incompatible with the 
issuance of a Grazing Permit to allow the use of goats and sheep for grazing in certain 
residential zones.  
 
The purpose of this Resolution is to amend Municipal Code Section 17.78.010 to add 
language which will address the conflict.  The proposed modification to the Municipal 
Code is included in add format, with proposed additions shown with an underline in 
Attachment 2. 
  
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The California Environmental Quality Act (Section 2100, et. seq. of the California Public 
Resources Code, hereafter CEQA) requires analysis of agency approvals of discretionary 
“projects”. A “project”, under CEQA is identified as “the whole of an action, which has a 
potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in the environment, or a 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment.” 
 

Packet Pg. 192

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
RMC Amendment - Grazing 
June 19, 2018 
Page 3 
 
The proposed revision to the Rocklin Municipal Code is not a “project” under CEQA 
because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in 
the environment, nor does it authorize the construction of any new structures or other 
physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is exempt under sections 
15060 (c)(2) and (3), 15061 (b)(3) and 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the Rocklin City Council 
approval of the proposed amendment of the Rocklin Municipal Code Title 17 regarding 
the City’s Weed Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program and the 
keeping of large animals. 
 
Attachments 
 
1) Grazing Management Program Regulations and Permit Conditions (April 2018) 
2) Proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code (new text underlined) 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 193

Agenda Item #10.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
 

WEED ABATEMENT AND OPEN SPACE 
MANAGEMENT GRAZING PROGRAM 

REGULATIONS 
AND PERMIT CONDITIONS  

(GRAZING PERMIT) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2018 

Packet Pg. 194

Agenda Item #10.



GRAZING PROGRAM REGULATIONS 
AND PERMIT CONDITIONS 

 

Grazing Permit Regulations and Conditions 
Page 1 of 10 

 
1. Purpose; Permit Required 
 
A.  The City Of Rocklin Weed Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program 
(“Grazing Program”) implements Ordinance No. 950 to allow Grazing Animals (limited to goats 
and sheep) to graze open space, wetlands, and other appropriate areas of natural vegetation on 
a short-term basis. For the purposes of this program and these regulations, any specific 
reference to grazing animals, goats or sheep shall be interpreted to include both goats and 
sheep. 
 
B. Grazing Animals, as permitted by the Grazing Program, shall only be used for the 
purpose of removing potentially combustible vegetation and shall not be kept as pets within the 
City of Rocklin.  
 
C. It shall be unlawful for any landowner, herdsmen, contractor or any other person to 
engage in or carry on, or to permit to be engaged in or carried on, in or upon any land within the 
City, grazing activities utilizing any grazing animals unless the person first obtains and continues 
to maintain in full force and effect a Grazing Program permit issued by the City; except if the 
keeping of such animals is otherwise consistent with the City of Rocklin zoning requirements. 
 
D. The Grazing Program permit shall be completed by both the grazing contractor and the 
landowner, and they shall submit the completed application to the issuing department.  The 
issuing department’s director shall either grant or deny the permit application within 20 
calendar days of the day the completed application is submitted.  
 
E.  Prior to issuance of the Grazing Program permit, pre-grazing photos of the grazing site 
shall be provided to the City. Within 10 days of the completion of the grazing activities, post-
grazing photos shall be taken and submitted to the City. Failure to submit pre- and post-grazing 
photos shall be grounds for denial of any subsequent permit applications by the grazing 
contractor and/or landowner of record.  
 
F.  The issuing department or their designee shall schedule and conduct regular inspections 
of grazing sites to ensure that permit conditions are met. The contractor shall be responsible for 
attending scheduled inspections and failure to do so shall be grounds for revocation of the 
Grazing Program permit. 
 
2. Care and Control of Animals 
 
A. The Contractor shall supply, utilize, and care for animals to graze the designated areas 
agreed to between the landowner and the Contractor.   
 
B. The Contractor is completely responsible for, and shall pay all costs necessary to ensure 
the health and safety for the animals and to comply with any applicable federal and state animal 
health requirements.  
 
C.   All animals will be healthy, well-nourished and free of internal and external parasites, 
and current on vaccinations for disease prevention. Grazing contractors shall monitor livestock 

Packet Pg. 195

Agenda Item #10.



Grazing Permit Regulations and Conditions 
Page 2 of 10 

on a daily basis. Any sick or injured animals should be treated and removed from the project if 
necessary. If veterinary care for any animal is required, the Contractor shall be responsible for 
costs incurred.  Any animals that die during this project shall promptly be removed and disposed 
of off-site by the Contractor. 
 
D. The contractor and landowner shall coordinate to ensure access to a supply of drinking 
water for all animals working on the project. This may include streams, creeks, ponds, or 
portable water tanks.  
 
3. Nature of the Operation 
 
A. The Contractor shall provide all personnel, tools, equipment, materials, means of 
transportation, and support facilities necessary for the onset management of the animals and 
support of herdsmen, including a clean and adequate water supply for the animals.  
 
B Contractor shall conduct grazing activities in a manner which keeps all animals under 
herdsmen’s control and appropriately confined within paddocks using portable electric fencing 
except when moving between grazing locations. The City or land owner, reserves the right to 
have Contractor remove from the grazing site any animal which creates a noise nuisance or 
habitually escapes confinement or control of the herdsmen.  
 
4. Environmental Management and Indemnification 
 
A. Any species of plants or trees to be protected from animal grazing should be identified 
prior to the start of grazing. Soil erosion is to be avoided and animals shall be moved 
immediately if any evidence of erosion damage is visible.   
 
B. Landowner shall be responsible for identifying environmentally sensitive areas within 
the grazing site. The Contractor shall ensure that no animal grazing occurs in identified 
environmentally sensitive areas.  
 
C. Landowner and Contractor hereby agree, jointly and severely, to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, consultants, subcontractors and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses including without 
limitation attorney fees, expert fees and related costs arising out of or relating to violations or 
alleged violations of any rule, regulation, or statute protecting environmentally sensitive areas 
or plant or animal species of any kind whatsoever in undertaking the grazing activities 
authorized by this permit. 
 
5. Herdsmen 
 
A person employed by the Contractor shall be on or near the work site during the entire time of 
this project. Living accommodations such as a portable self-contained living trailer (e.g., tent 
trailer, trailer, 5th wheel, camper shell or motor home) shall be provided by the Contractor for 
this person.  The herdsmen shall have a cell phone provided by the Contractor for 
communication. The herdsmen shall not smoke or use open fires for cooking.  The campsite 
shall be kept clean and near the current grazing paddock.  Movement of the camp is the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

Packet Pg. 196

Agenda Item #10.



Grazing Permit Regulations and Conditions 
Page 3 of 10 

 
6. Herd Control and Predator Deterrence 
 
The Contractor may use dogs, or upon approval by the City, other appropriate animals for herd 
control and predator deterrence. The Contractor’s dogs may work off leash in order to 
accomplish this scope of work. All dogs used for this purpose shall be vaccinated for rabies and 
shall have a certificate of vaccination by a licensed veterinarian. 
 
7.  Signage 
 
Signage identifying the contractors business name and a 24 hour contact phone number shall be 
required every 165’ on all sides of the paddock area where there is the potential of public 
accessibility. The intent is that citizens and neighbors first address their questions and concerns 
directly with the contractor. 
 
8. Contractor Insurance Requirements 
 
A. During the term of this permit and any extension thereof, the Contractor shall obtain 
and thereafter maintain at least the minimum insurance coverage as set forth below: 
 

1. Worker’s Compensation: Statutory Limits; 
2. Commercial General Liability: $2,000,000 combined single limit; and 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit. 

 
B. All insurance required hereunder shall: 
 

1. Provide that it is primary to and not contributing with, any policy of insurance 
carried by City or Landowner covering the same loss; 

2. Include an endorsement providing that written notice shall be given to 
Landowner at least thirty (30) days prior to termination, cancellation, or 
reduction of coverage in such policy. (10 day non-payment is OK) 

3. Include an endorsement waiving all rights of subrogation against City and 
Landowner; 

4. Include an endorsement in substance and form satisfactory to City, naming City 
and Landowner as an additional insured; and 

5. Be procured from companies that are licensed in the State of California and that 
are reasonably acceptable to City. 

 
C. Contractor shall provide City with a certificate of insurance evidencing that Contractor 
has obtained all insurance required under this permit prior to commencement of any work or 
activity at the Grazing Site.  
 
D. The amount of coverage of insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant to these Permit 
requirements shall not limit Contractor’s liability nor relieve Contractor of any obligation or 
liability resulting from activities related to this permit. 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 197

Agenda Item #10.



Grazing Permit Regulations and Conditions 
Page 4 of 10 

9. Indemnification Provisions 
 
A. Contractor understands the nature of the work to be performed under this permit, has 
inspected the site where the work is to be performed, and understands any potential dangers 
incidental to performing the work at the site. Contractor hereby voluntarily releases, discharges, 
waives, and relinquishes any and all actions and causes of action for personal injury (including 
death) or property damage occurring to himself/herself arising out of or as a result of 
performing the work under this permit. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City of Rocklin, its officers, employees and volunteers, from any claims, demands, 
damages, costs, expenses or liability for personal injury (including death) or property damage, 
arising out of or connected with his/her work under this permit or issuance of this permit.  
Contractor agrees that under no circumstances will he/she, or his/her heirs, executors, 
administrators and assigns prosecute or present any claim against the City of Rocklin or any of 
its officers, employees or volunteers for person injury (including death) or property damage, 
including those which arise by the negligence of the City of Rocklin or any of said persons, 
whether passive or active. The indemnification provisions of this section shall not be construed 
to require Contractor to indemnify against liability for claims, damages, losses, or expenses 
arising out or relating to trespassers or other persons entering or using the grazing site for 
purposes unrelated to the grazing activities related to this permit. 
 
B. Landowner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, consultants, subcontractors and volunteers from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses and expenses including without limitation attorney fees, expert fees and 
related costs arising out of or relating to the activities authorized by this permit. Landowner 
agrees that under no circumstances will he/she, or his/her heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns prosecute or present any claim against the City of Rocklin or any of its officers, 
employees or volunteers for person injury (including death) or property damage, including those 
which arise by the negligence of the City of Rocklin or any of said persons, whether passive or 
active. 
 
10. Denial or Revocation; Appeal Process 
 

A. The requirements, regulations and provisions set forth above shall be deemed 
conditions imposed upon every grazing management permit approved, and failure to 
comply with every such requirement shall be grounds for suspension, revocation or 
other action on the permit issued pursuant to these regulations.  

 
B. Failure to comply with any and all requirements will result in escalating enforcement 

including a verbal warning followed by a written warning and finally revocation of the 
permit. Contractors who have had a permit revoked in the previous year shall not 
receive a warning prior to revocation or suspension. Revocation of a grazing permit in a 
previous year shall be grounds for denial of future permit applications. 
 

C. The denial or revocation of a grazing permit by the issuing department’s director (or his 
or her designee) may be appealed by the applicant or permit holder to the city manager. 
The appeal must be filed in writing with the city clerk not later than the fifteenth day 
after the date notice of the director's decision is mailed to the applicant or permit 
holder. On receipt of an appeal, the city clerk shall set the matter for hearing occurring 

Packet Pg. 198

Agenda Item #10.



Grazing Permit Regulations and Conditions 
Page 5 of 10 

within fifteen days after receipt of the appeal. Notice of the hearing shall be mailed to 
the applicant or permit holder, at least three days before the hearing. On appeal, the 
city manager may hear and determine the matter as if it were an original application. 
The city manager shall issue a decision in writing within 20 calendar days from the date 
of the appeal hearing.  The City Manager's determination of the matter shall be final. 

 
 

Packet Pg. 199

Agenda Item #10.



 

Grazing Permit Application  Page 1  

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
Grazing Permit Application 

LANDOWNER INFORMATION  

Landowner Name:   

Street Address:       

City, State, Zip Code:       

Telephone Number: (       )       

Email Address:       

Emergency Contact Name and Phone Number:       (       )       
 
By signing below, the Landowner agrees that all work to be performed shall comply with the City’s Weed Abatement 
and Open Space Management Grazing Program requirements, including requirement to indemnify and hold the City 
harmless from claims arising from the Landowner’s grazing activities and any other applicable City, State or Federal 
regulations, including, but not limited to, specific conditions incorporated into applicable conservation easement 
provisions. 
 
                 
Landowner’s Signature  Date 

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION  

Contractor Name:       

Street Address:       

City, State, Zip Code:       

Telephone Number: (       )       

Email Address:       

Veterinarian Contact Name and Phone Number       (       )       

Emergency Contact Name and Phone Number:       (       )       
 
By signing below, the Contractor agrees that all work to be performed shall comply with the City’s Weed Abatement 
and Open Space Management Grazing Program requirements, including requirement to indemnify and hold the City 
harmless from claims arising from the Contractor’s activities authorized by this permit and any other applicable City, 
State or Federal regulations, including, but not limited to, specific conditions incorporated into applicable conservation 
easement provisions. 
 
                 
Contractor’s Signature  Date 

FIRE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY Permit Issued by: 

Print Name and Title:         

Signature:  Date:        

     
  

  Proof of Insurance Received Date: __     __   Rocklin Business License No:__     ________ 

  Pre-Grazing Photos Received Date: __     __  
       

 Applicant copy   Animal Control copy   Public Works copy 

Packet Pg. 200

Agenda Item #10.



Grazing Permit Application  Page 2 
 

PLEASE PROVIDE THIS INFORMATION FOR EACH GRAZING SITE.  ATTACH MULTIPLE COPIES OF THIS PAGE IF 
NECESSARY.  
 
GRAZING SITE INFORMATION  

Location:       

Area/Acres to be Grazed:       
Map Attached:   Yes   No 

Description of the vegetation and/or fuels abated: 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 

Expected Start Date:       
Expected End Date:       
Number of Animals:       

If animals will be moved across a public street, list 
street name(s): 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Conditions of Approval  

 
 
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY Permit Terminated by: 

Print Name and Title:         

Signature:  Date:        

       
  Post Grazing Photos Received Date: __     __  

       
 

 

Packet Pg. 201

Agenda Item #10.



Chapter 17.78 - LARGE ANIMALS  

Sections:  

17.78.010 - Generally.  

Large animals (excluding common household pets governed by Sections 6.44.050 and 
6.44.060 of this code, which are not regulated by this chapter) are permitted in certain single-
family residential zones where there is sufficient space to accommodate them, subject to the 
provisions of this chapter. In some zones, only horses are permitted. Domestic swine are 
permitted as household pets as provided in Title 6. No large animals may be kept on property 
where there is not an occupied single-family residence on the property unless a conditional use 
permit has been issued by the planning commission, but shall not exceed the number 
permitted on occupied premises without a conditional use permit. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, goats and sheep are allowed in any zone of the City if a grazing permit has been 
issued pursuant to Section 6.36.050 and the animals are kept consistent with the City’s Weed 
Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program.  

(Ord. 663 § 2, 1992: Ord. 370: Ord. 336 § 7.07.000, 1977).  

 

Packet Pg. 202

Agenda Item #10.



RESOLUTION NO. PC- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN TO AMEND A SECTION OF TITLE 17 OF THE 
ROCKLIN MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE CITY’S WEED ABATEMENT 

AND OPEN SPACE MANAGEMENT GRAZING PROGRAM 
AND THE KEEPING OF LARGE ANIMALS (ZOA2018-0003) 

 
 

  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines that: 
 
 A. The proposed amendment of Section 17.78 – Large Animals of Title 17 of 
the Rocklin Municipal Code is necessary to address conflicts between the zoning 
language and the use of goats and sheep for grazing consistent with the City’s Weed 
Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program. 

 
B.  The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is not a 

“project” under CEQA, and is therefore exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 
15061(b)(3) and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
  C. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is consistent 

with and implements the policies of the City of Rocklin's General Plan, including the 
Housing Element. 

 
  D. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is not likely to 

create serious health problems or create nuisances on or near affected properties. 
 
  E. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the proposed 

amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code on the housing needs of the region and has 
balanced those needs against the public service needs of its residents and available 
fiscal and environmental resources. 

 
  

Packet Pg. 203

Agenda Item #10.a.



Page 2 of  
Reso No. PC- 

Section 2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby recommends approval 
of the Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of June, 2018, by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES:  Commissioners   
  
NOES:  Commissioners  
  
ABSENT: Commissioners  
  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  
  
 
 
            
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary  
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 204

Agenda Item #10.a.



 

Page 1 of Exhibit 1 
To Reso No. PC- 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN TO AMEND 
A SECTION OF TITLE 17 OF THE ROCKLIN MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE 

CITY’S WEED ABATEMENT AND OPEN SPACE MANAGEMENT GRAZING PROGRAM  
AND THE KEEPING OF LARGE ANIMALS (ZOA2018-0003) 

 
The City Council of the City of Rocklin does ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Findings.   
 
 A. The proposed amendment of Section 17.78 – Large Animals of Title 17 of 
the Rocklin Municipal Code is necessary to address conflicts between the zoning 
language and the use of sheep and goats for grazing consistent with the City’s Weed 
Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program. 

 
B.  The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is not a 

“project” under CEQA, and is therefore exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 
15061(b)(3) and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
  C. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is consistent 

with and implements the policies of the City of Rocklin's General Plan, including the 
Housing Element. 

 
  D. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code is not likely to 

create serious health problems or create nuisances on or near affected properties. 
 
  E. The City Council has considered the effect of the proposed amendment 

to the Rocklin Municipal Code on the housing needs of the region and has balanced 
those needs against the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and 
environmental resources. 
 
 Section 2.  Authority. The City Council enacts this ordinance under the 
authority granted to cities by Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution and 
Government Code Section 37100. 
 

Section 3. Amend. Section 17.78.010 of Chapter 17.78 – LARGE ANIMALS is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
17.78.010 - Generally.  

Large animals (excluding common household pets governed by Sections 6.44.050 
and 6.44.060 of this code, which are not regulated by this chapter) are permitted in 

Packet Pg. 205

Agenda Item #10.a.



 

Page 2 of Exhibit 1 
To Reso No. PC- 

certain single-family residential zones where there is sufficient space to accommodate 
them, subject to the provisions of this chapter. In some zones, only horses are 
permitted. Domestic swine are permitted as household pets as provided in Title 6. No 
large animals may be kept on property where there is not an occupied single-family 
residence on the property unless a conditional use permit has been issued by the 
planning commission, but shall not exceed the number permitted on occupied premises 
without a conditional use permit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, goats and sheep are 
allowed in any zone of the City if a grazing permit has been issued pursuant to Section 
6.36.050 and the animals are kept consistent with the City’s Weed Abatement and Open 
Space Management Grazing Program.   

(Ord. 663 § 2, 1992: Ord. 370: Ord. 336 § 7.07.000, 1977).  

Section 4. Severability. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by 
the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  City Council hereby declares that it 
would have adopted the Ordinance and each section, sub-section, sentence, clause, 
phrase or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, sub-
sections, sentences, clauses, phrases or portions to be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 

Section 5. Environmental.  The City Council hereby finds that this 
ordinance is not subject to review under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15060, subdivision (c)(2) (the activity 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical changed in the 
environment, subdivision (c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 
15378), section 15061, subdivision (b)(3) (there is no possibility the activity in 
question may have a significant effect on the environment) and section 15378 
(definition of a “project”). 

 
Section 6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after 

the day of its adoption. 
 

 Section 7. Publication.  Within 15 days of the passage of this ordinance, the 
City Clerk shall cause the full text of the ordinance, with the names of those City Council 
members voting for and against the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald.  In 
lieu of publishing the full text of the ordinance, the City Clerk, if so directed by the City 
Attorney and within 15 days, shall cause a summary of the ordinance, prepared by the 
City Attorney and with the names of the City Council members voting for and against 
the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald, and shall post in the office of the 
City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the ordinance, along with the names of 
those City Council members voting for and against the ordinance.  The publication of a 
summary of the ordinance in lieu of the full text of the ordinance is authorized only 
where the requirements of Government Code section 36933(c)(1) are met. 

Packet Pg. 206

Agenda Item #10.a.



 

Page 3 of Exhibit 1 
To Reso No. PC- 

 
INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rocklin held 

on          _____________, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers: 
NOES:  Councilmembers: 
ABSENT: Councilmembers 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Rocklin held on __________, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers:  
NOES:  Councilmembers:  
ABSENT: Councilmembers: 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:  
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
     KenBroadway, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Barbara Ivanusich, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:  
Effective Date:  
 
 

 

Packet Pg. 207

Agenda Item #10.a.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	a. May 1, 2018 Minutes
	[05.01.18  PC Minutes.pdf]

	b. May 15, 2018 Minutes
	[05.15.18  PC Minutes.pdf]


	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. ATRIA ROCKLIN STORAGE BUILDING
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0002
		
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to allow the construction of a 1,361 square foot storage building at the existing Atria Rocklin Senior Living facility.  The subject site is located at 3201 Santa Fe Way.  APN 017-350-051.  The property is zoned Planned Development Business Professional/Commercial (PD-BP/C) and Wetlands (W).  The General Plan designation is Business Professional/Commercial (BP/C) and Recreation/Conservation (R-C).

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, and Section 15311, Accessory Structures, has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project.

The applicant is The Olympic Group, Inc.  The property owner is ARHC CAROCCA01 LLC.

	[01 - SR Atria Rocklin Storage Building (PC 6-19-18)- final.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Notice Of Exemption (Atria Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002)
	[02 - Atria Rocklin Storage Buildling NOE and Reso 15303 and 15311 (2018)- final.pdf]

	b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Design Review (Atria Rocklin Storage Building/DR2018-0002)
	[03 - Atria Rocklin Storage Building - DR Reso -final.pdf]
	[03a - DR Reso Exhibit A (11x17).pdf]


	8. WEST MARINE DIGITAL FREEWAY SIGN
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2018-0003
		
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to construct an approximately 65-foot-tall, 672 square foot digital freeway sign adjacent to Highway 80.  The subject site is located on the southern corner of the commercial center located at 4445 Granite Drive, directly adjacent to Highway 80. APN 045-080-036. The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC)

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Digital Freeway Sign Program project adopted by City Council in 2012 (CC Reso 2012-35).The applicant is Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC (Beau Palley). The property owner is Acorn Property Management and Development Company, LLC (Audrey Gannon).  

	[01 - SR West Marine (PC 6-19-18) complete.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval Of An Operating Agreement For A Digital Freeway Sign, City Of Rocklin And Orion 50 Outdoor, LLC Interstate 80 At West Marine. (West Marine Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003)
	[04 - Reso Operating Agreement West Marine (PC 6-19-18) complete.pdf]

	b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval Of A Design Review (West Marine Digital Freeway Sign / DR2018-0003)
	[06 - Reso DR West Marine (PC 6-19-18) complete.pdf]


	9. DIGITAL BILLBOARD SIGN RELOCATION
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0015
		
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review to relocate an existing digital billboard sign from APN 365-020-032 south, approximately 80 feet, on to APN 365-310-033. There would be no modification to the design, height, or total area of the sign. The subject site is located on the northwest corner of the commercial center located at 6500 Lonetree Boulevard, directly adjacent to Highway 65.  APN 365-310-033. The property is zoned Planned Development Business Professional/Commercial/Light Industrial (PD-BP/C/LI).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC)

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has identified that the project may rely on the previously approved Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Digital Freeway Sign Program project adopted by City Council in 2012 (CC Reso 2012-35). The applicant is Clear Channel Outdoor (Rob LaGrone). The property owner is Rocklin 65 LLC (John S. Foggy).  

	[01 - SR Digital Billboard Relocation (PC 6-19-18) Complete.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval Of An Operating Agreement For A Digital Freeway Sign, City Of Rocklin And Clear Channel Outdoor At Rocklin 65 Commerce Center Site. (Digital Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015)
	[04 - Reso Operating Agreement Clear Channel (PC 6-19-18) Complete.pdf]

	b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending To The City Council Approval Of A Design Review (Digital Billboard Sign Relocation / DR2017-0015)
	[06 - Reso DR Digital Sign Relocation (PC 6-19-18) complete.pdf]


	10. RMC GRAZING ANIMALS UTILIZED FOR WEED ABATEMENT
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, ZOA2018-0003
	
The proposed project would amend certain sections of Title 17 - Zoning of the Rocklin Municipal Code related to the keeping of large animals in single family residential zones to clarify exemptions pursuant to the City’s Weed Abatement and Open Space Management Grazing Program.
		
The proposed revisions to the Rocklin Municipal Code are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they authorize the construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3), 15262, and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines.
 
The proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code was initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be effective City-wide.

	[1-grazing ord PC staff report 6.19.18 Complete.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval Of An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of Rocklin To Amend A Section Of Title 17 Of The Rocklin Municipal Code Regarding The City’s Weed Abatement And Open Space Management Grazing Program And The Keeping Of Large Animals (ZOA2018-0003) 
	[4-RMC Grazing Amendments PC Reso - final 6.19.18.pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	11. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	12. Reports from City Staff
	13. Adjournment


